Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Meeting
Thursday, January 30, 2020, at 9:00 a.m.
At the County Office Building in Conference Room #241
AGENDA
Call to Order:

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — November 12, 2019 meeting
2. Financial Statements — November 2019 (Unaudited)
3. Airport Statistics: October 2019 and November 2019

Matters from the Public: All person desiring to make presentations as part of the MATTERS FROM THE
PUBLIC section of the Agenda are requested to advise the administrative office prior to commencement of the
meeting to assist the Chairman in conducting the meeting in an efficient and productive manner; allowing for
maximum input. Speakers are encouraged to limit remarks to five minutes. Additional time may be granted
solely at the discretion of the Chairman unless such presentation is extended by reason of the Authority’s request
for additional information:

Awards and Recognition:

Action Items:
1. Annual Election of Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary/Treasurer
2. FY-2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
3. 2020 Audit Committee Membership
4. Smith Vicars Aviation Agreement Letter
5. Transportation Network Company Agreements

Informational Items:
1. Executive Director’s Update
a. Personnel Update
b. Construction Update
i. Air Carrier Apron Expansion Project
ii. Expansion of Economy Surface Parking Lot Project & Hangar Parking Lot Improvements
iii. ARFF Breakroom and Training Room Project — Environmental issue
iv. MALSR Update
v. Passenger Shelters
vi. Terminal Area Masterplan
Personnel Policy Revision
Upcoming Request for Proposals — Taxi, Engineering, Banking
Authority Smoking Policy
Marketing & Air Service Update
Staff’s Snow Removal Efforts
Part 139 FAA Annual Certification Inspection

F®Rtho ap

Closed Session:
In accordance with VA Code 2.2-3712 the Airport Authority will convene in closed session for the following

purposes:

Consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public body regarding specific legal matters requiring
the provision of legal advice by such counsel pursuant to VA Code 2.2-3711 (A) (8).

Next Scheduled Meeting: March 10, 2020 @ 8:30 a.m., Airport Terminal’s Lower Level Conference Room

Adjourn:



———7

CHO

A I R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Board Meeting
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. in the Airport Terminal-Lower Level Conference Room
MINUTES

Members Present: Donald Long, Jeff Richardson, Dr. Tarron Richardson (arrived at approximately 9:00)
Members Absent: N/A

Staff Present: Melinda Crawford: Executive Director; Penny Shifflett: Director of Finance and
Administration; Jason Burch: Deputy Executive Director; Stirling Williams: Director of Landside Operations;
Jonathan Shenk: Chief of Public Safety; Jessica Conley: Administrative Assistant

Others Present: Sebastian Waisman: Assistant City Attorney, City of Charlottesville;

Call to Order at 8:33 a.m. by Donald Long

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — May 13, 2019 and October 17, 2019 (Joint Meeting) - discussed.
2. Financial Statements —June 2019 and September 2019 (Unaudited) - discussed.
3. Airport Statistics: June, July, August, and September 2019 - discussed.

Mr. Richardson made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded by Mr. Long, and it
was unanimously approved.

Matters from the Public: None

Action Items:

1. Approval of Amendment #2 to the Airport’s FY20 Capital Budget- The airport’s existing forklift has
been experiencing serious mechanical issues. It was purchased several years ago through a state
surplus program. In order to fund the new forklift an amendment to the FY20 capital budget is being
requested. Also the amendment proposes to move the Terminal Fire Suppression Upgrade Project to a
future year to be incorporated with the terminal expansion project.

Mr. Richardson made a motion to Approve Amendment#2 to the Airport’s FY20 Capital Budget. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Long, and it was unanimously approved.

Informational Items:
1. Executive Director’s Update: Ms. Crawford presented the following items:

a. Personnel Update: 5 employees have recently left the Authority, and we have 3 new janitorial
positions starting in the next 2 weeks. We currently have one opening for a part time
ambassador.

b. Construction Update:

i. Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design: The project started in July 2019. The expected
completion date is the summer 2020,
ii. Expansion of Economy Surface Parking Lot Project: Less than 100 spots have been
created. Currently, the installation of light poles is the only item remaining before the
lot can be opened.



iii. Hangar Parking Lot and other Parking Improvement Projects: Demo has been
completed on the old hangar, and 100 new parking spaces have been created. The
parking lot is now open.

iv. ARFF Breakroom and Training Room Project- Environmental issue: The ARFF
building was constructed in the 1960’s and no significant work has been done in this
area since the 1970’s. An environmental issue has been discovered in the building,
and this issue will be addressed in the near future.

v. MALSR Update: The MALSR was decommissioned in July 2017. A conference call
was held with FAA early in November, and we are waiting on FAA to complete and
approve a proposed change. Ms. Crawford explained that the engineers are moving
forward with developing a scope of work for the MALSR repairs.

¢. CHO’s Airport Concessions Disadvantage Business Enterprise (ACDBE) Program’s Update

was discussed
d. The incorporation of Attachment #linto the Authority’s Purchasing Regulation was

discussed.
€. Anupcoming Agreement Letter with Smith Vicars was discussed
f. Marketing & Air Service Update: Mr. Burch provided the following updates:

i. Air Service: He discussed the increase of airline service planned for the
Thanksgiving holiday and that the passenger traffic during the Thanksgiving week is
on course to be the busiest in CHO’s history with 32 daily flights.

g. Ms. Crawford acknowledged Staff’s Outstanding Management of Recent VIP Visit.

Closed Session:

In accordance with VA Code 2.2-3712 the Airport Authority convened in closed session for the following
purposes:

For Discussion and consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose where discussion in
an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body
pursuant to VA Code 2.2-3711 (A) (3). Mr. Richardson made the motion, Mr. Long seconded the motion, and

it was unanimously approved.

Board entered closed session at 9:25 am.

Certification of Closed Meeting:

At 9:48 a.m. Mr. Richardson made the following motion:

I move that this Board certify by a recorded vote that to the best of each Board member’s knowledge only
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of

Information Act and identified in the motion convening the closed session were heard, discussed or
considered in the closed session.

Mr. Long seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved
Next Scheduled Meeting: January 14, 2020 at the County Office Building in Conference Room#241.

Adjournment: 9:50 a.m. Mr. Richardson motioned to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Long seconded the motion,
and it was unanimously approved.



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of Nov 30, 2019



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

Profit & Loss Notes
As of Nov 30, 2019
$15K and 10% change
Expenses:
A. Admin- Overtime: -- This line item is currently over budget due to the annual leave

buyback that was paid in November. While a bulk of the expense is in November, for
budgeting purposes, expenses are annualized and spread over the 12 months equally.

B. Various Expense Line Items:--There are line items that are under budget. These expenses
vary and it is not unusual for the expenses to be incurred later in the year or at the end of
the budget cycle or to be much lower than budgeted.

C. Airfield-ARFF Equipment: -- year-to-date expense: $34,836  Budgeted: $12,500
The expenses for this line item occurred early in the fiscal year and were to outfit the
entire ARFF personnel with the appropriate attire.

D. Terminal-Health Insurance:-- This line item is under budget due to conservative estimates
during the budgeting process whereby vacant positions are computed with the highest
insurance premiums.

E. Terminal-Elevator. Escalator and HVAC Maintenance:--These line items are over budget
due to the aging systems and their need for frequent repairs.

Net Income

November year-to-date net income before other income = $329,342.



%6'L 29'869'S9  00'LZ'919'8 01°285'€08'e 2L082'696°E 21'808° 102 S1'¥60'L0L 1j0id ss049
%61 29'869'69  00'L¥2'919'8 01'285'€05°S 2.'082'695"¢ Zh'808'102 S4'¥60'L02L awoau| jejoL
%0'Z SL'208'9L  00'Ve8'vLz'Z 00°52€°1.98 GL'ZEL'8L8 00°28€'€L) LL'EER'6IL SANNIATY TYNIWYIL [eIOL
%8'8E 00'628'€ 00'000°%2 100°000°01L 00'6L8'€L 00°000'2 00'650'2 aBunojajue) ssauisng - 0SCEOPE
%00 000 0070 000 000 000 000 UUIB [BUILID ) 10} JU3 BJEIS - 0NGELYE
%00 000 00'9L¥'L 00'GLL'E 00'GLL'E loorezo 00'€29 UoISSaU0 WLV - 00FE0PE
%0004~ GE'ees- |00°000'2 leeeee 000 |297991 00’0 leujwis ] SNO3UR|IBISIK - 00LE0VE
%29l 186'952'8 00°000°0€L $9'99L'vS €9'€26'29 lecees'ol 09'266'0L SUOISSDUOD YIOIPOOS - 0SZEOVE
%E0 s9'zLe 00°000'02L SE'EES0L 00°'9%0'LL 129994 'pL 00°185°04 BuisiLeApy - 002S0VE
%00 000 ¥0'285'65 lseer8've seel8'vE 197296'y 19'296'% 8Sed7 pue VLD Jeg |ejudy - SGLE0VE
%00 00’0 00'000'%2 loo"0000L 00'000°0L 00°000'z '00000'z $994 uojejiodsues | PUNOLY - OSLEOYE
%E' L |zeross'y 00°¥0L'0L‘L 0Uszs'ese |zesz'aie 00°464'GL Py 162'GL BNUaAaY JeJ [EIUSY - 00LLOVE
%20 |02°0t 00'6£9'98 06'£65'€2 09'8£9'€Z 185814 lzzezey | WAWASINQUIRY VS - GI0EOVE
%0'0 09y 00'%0S'SY 00'096'8L 09'v96'8 |00'gBL'E |z6'z6L'e WRYITS F2NAIBS YV - 0S0E0PE
%00 0Z'0 96'256°159 Ov'08¥'1L.LT 09'08%'12 80°962'7S [zvoszys | Y auIlly - 000€0VE |
. SINNIATY TYNINYEL
%0 6818 00'¥rL'v0L'Y 00'090°096'L 61 v¥2'896'L |00'ZL0'Z6E S1'9/9'v8¢ SANNIATY ONIMEVd ie10L
%6002 SY'y00‘L 00°002°) 00'008 St08°) |00"00L 51061 $894 SNOBUL|IBISIN - 910LOVL
%861 00°G6Y 00'000'9 00'008°2 00'666°C 00'005 00°009 834'9595USDNT ‘spuLIRd - Buplied - gLOLOYL
%E"Q $0'689'9 0076969 | |00'090°286'L 0’2 '€96'L 00°ZLY'LEE | |00°988'E8E anuaasy Bunped _
. SANNIAIY ONIIUVA |
%6'L ¥6'808'06  00°Z/Z'LES'L 100085069 ¥6'8€"169 |00'901'8Z1 BL'BLE LYL SANNIAIY a1314YIV 1830 L
%9°'0S 00'980'€ 00°00v"pL 00°000'9 00'9€0'6 looo0z'L 00°€LS'} ‘quIsY [03U0Y SS30DY MJLUNBS - 90IE0YZ
%0'001- 00°005- 00°002°L 00°00¢ 000 00°00L 000 PISILUIY 9NUBAIY SNOSUR|IPISIN - 00LE0TZ
%b'se 80788 00°000°9 00'00s' 80'¥8E°C 00°008 lo00 aBemold MIV - 05Z20V2
%6t 0v'2sL's 00'000°08% 00°000'002 ‘ov'zsL'60z 00'000'0% €9 LyL'LY anuaAey 094 - 002Z0FZ
%6°'¥E 88'889'2L  00°0L2°/8 05'2€2'9¢ 'g8°9z0'61 log 202"z lzLroL'vL S99 PIRIMIVAUSY PUNOLY . 00LZOFZ
%Z'Z2- L6'618'L-  00°000°0Z ge'eee'e 8E'E8Y'9 29'999°1L lo00 s12leYD - LODZOVZ
%69 §S'26L'9  00°Z9V'8Z6 S1'668'08¢ los-9s9'e Ly £8°1L8'2L leovse'es enuaasy Buipue aully - 00020¥Z
. | . . . _ SANNIATY Q131N |
00100001 04°£99'LY 71'G9G"1E reee's |s9'992's SANNIATY SALLVHLISININGY IBI0L
%€°99 19°0£9'9 00°'000'v2 00°000'04 [19:089'91 l00'000'z €29LL'2 aluoou| 1salaju| - 000S0V.L
%0001~ GE'E8S'PL-  00°000'SE SE'ES YL 000 19'916'2 000 wbid uonowoid g uoneiry vOdA - 00L¥09
%0°001 £¥'68Z 000 000 £'a8z 000 00°'LG1 _ snuaasy suyoely Buipuap - Z0oboro
%00 loo'L 00'L06'vE 0LZYS'H loversyl Z1'806'C |zv'806'z JUsSWIIsINqUIIRY Yeis V1D - L00V0T9
%866~ |so'ger'z-  0000L'9 Sl 00'901 ££'805 oo'te 2WOdU| SNOBUE|IBISIN - 000F0F9
. SINNIAIN SAILVHLISININGY
| QEDUE_.
_ [ asuadxg/ewoau; Aieuipio
sbueys s, | eBueys¢  196png jenuuy webpng gLA 6l AON - N[ jabpng 61 AON |
610Z 19qWanON

aouewLIOjad }9Bpng sso pue Jijouy
Auoyiny podiy spewaqiy-ajjiAseyoley)




%L 82 69'EV6'C9Z- |00 ZEV L92 T SLTH0'8Y6 90'660'289 G'G96'V6 15'999'951 SoSUBUXT GANEHSIILIDY [E10L
8  |%les |6ZLLP'69  0008L'BLL SO LYZ'bL 9evze's £2°8p8'yL 00'80€"L osuadxg 'Aeq a0IMes 1Y - 0887088 |
%6'56- loz'829'vi-  00°009'9E 00°05Z'SL log'129 loooso'e [o0'88p SIU9AT [er0eds - 1987059 _
4  %ose |sz'868'L2-  00'0SZ'G8p - 0g81°202 lszeszioel | ocuevor | |9e00v0e asuadX3 UOIOWIOId ¢ "UBAPY - 098Z0SI
| %G ¥e- |ov1ve'ss- 0000wz 169'999°L01 lszrszs's) SE'CEE0Z log'sL0'z S99 [eUOISSBI01d - 0SBZOSE.
%0001~ |SLPOL-  00'05Z Siv0L  looo legoz lo00 ssusdx3igeq ped - 0082069 | |
%0001 \zvve 000 000 lerime looo | legsii- sosuadx3 sNooLe|EISIN - 0922089
%8t |v6P61 100'080°92 6999801 l65°190'11 legest'z | soGaL sa5Usdx3 90.n0SaY UBWINY - 0672069 |
%000 S 000 ~ ooo lvep 000 [ Tee seoq aalneg - 10L20S9 | |
%6 le0oel- 00°08v'E 00°05%'L 6618 '00'062 00°0vZ saag Bupjueg - 0022059
%e 62 lssz0z= o000zt | ses0L | l1iro0s 91t | Tovsy abeisod - 0gozose | |
%6Z0z 12’1297 0000L'E l59'162'1 logzi6'e £8852 eLviT asuadx3 Bunsal - 0092059
%S85 |Bl'ses  00'00v'Z 100°000°} | Tievor 00002 | Teereet Buiddys - L95Zose |
%052 lovi6z'z-  o0'0se'2  ls1veo'e 66292 £80L9 I 000 Bupexsely sang g seng - 1L5ZZ059|
%582 |s8'08Z'l-  00°208°0) 1580087 loo'ozz's 11°006 000 SARENSIUIWPY - SANS 7§ SAN - 0527059
%592 lzvevs'e 00000tz |ge'ess's | ez 19°916') logsplL Bupase—jeelL - LOLZOSO|
%tz [L'969'e: | 00°008°Z1 loo'ez's | legezvl 00520’} Z21pT SARBHSIUNPY - [9ABIL - 0042059
%0°Z€E- lwez-  loooss's log 2802 |6e'859°L 05°28% Z1°96¢ asea] uawdinbg - 0202069
4 [%6'ge- BUGYE'SL- | 00'665'90L | logsee'ry | zeesvsz z6'68'8 | 80'SBY'Z asuadxg Jeindwo - 0902059 |
%261 SEGIEZ 00°08K'8 |seees's ool 19902 " ooo SANEASIUILIPY - UONEDNPT - 0S0Z0G9 |
|%g91 10'902 loo'0o0's | loooszy g l000sz l06'86Z 5904 Buissaooid l10Aed - 6202059 |
%628~ TisL's  00vve'ez | loosss's 8Ll |00'286'L 66'G1 sasuadx3 93140 - L00Z0G9 |
|%e0g- SOLLZY 0000402 | loooos's SE°82Z'Y [o0002'L '18°€56 seyddns 22130 - 0002089 |
|%ee ‘o5's8L loo'sz6'8z lo1zs0'zh 09°208'71 |zrorr'z log'c0s'z aAneSuIPY - asusdx3 nsu| - 00ZL0GY|
|%9'gt- 89501 | 00'8Y8'9z Sgesl'tL | 20'180%0 legsez'z log°201°1 sAjensiuwpY - suoydala1-un - 00LLOSY |
|%os 82°€22'L  |00'625'88 " ovssevz | esoesz levegy  leguzie SAREASIIIPY - JUSWBINSY - 0S£00SY
%19z 08'89 loo'zee SE'€9Z sizee 2928 €99 uIpY - gesiq 17 /qestd LS - 0020059
l%et oLesk lo0'p0z'6 ‘00°ges's oLLL0Y |00 202 l1z'z08 SARASIUILIPY - BOUBINSU| 41T - 0SZ00G9 |
%s'8 SZT668'T  00'896'L8 SLepl've lov'sp0'se les6z8'0 lozeves aanessunupy-ddnsy su) ylesH - 0020059
%z 1L lve8l6'z-  00'8ST'L9 000009 | |9u'ie0'er loo'Lp2's |z6poe's sAensIWpY - saxey ||osked - 0S1.00S9 | |
v %TSEL  |69°099'ZZ  00'6SLbY oUssi'oL | |BISLYeE 00GS6'EL | |£0°426'E UIIPY - BUIIIBAQ - 0500059 _
%9z leverzs  oovivzes ‘ooezE'sLe 1562001 00'8/8'45 |vg-oer'as aAnensiunupy - sabep - 0000089
sesuadxg saneasiwwpy
| | osuadxg|
oBueyns | eBueys$ | jebpngjenuuy 39bpng a1A 61 AON - I 1ebpng 6} AON ||
6102 19qUWaAON

aouew.lopad Jebpng sso pue jyoid
fjioysny podiry sjlewaqy-ajjinsaoley)




%00 +8'92- 00'24Z'LE6°L 00229 oV Ll 2o 9Z'9L0'vEL PSEL'LLL sesuadx3 pjaiiy [ejoL
%bip lseeee’l- 000089 SE'eEs'z 00'008'L £9'995 000 asuadxa punosByaeg AILNDS - SO9TLST
%045 89’1100k 00'0LL'ZY S8'08'LL 216652 lovvige | loooooe 104JU0D $589y AILNJSS - 0SSTLET.
%l leg1s 100000  000s2'L [ss10e't lo0'0sz looo sieuole JewzeH - 0SHZLST
%l e lezelzr  oooss's log'zog'e lsz91'% 05°ZLL lsrsgz _ suueaNd - GZPZLST
%90 le6gE 00°006'7L |ge"80z's |vevvze 9w |eroLz's soyddng Bujuies] 494v - 00VZISZ
) %L8LL  EE'9EE'ZZ  |00°000°0E " oo00sz1 |ee-oes've 000052 log162 wewdINb3 44V - 0SEZL5Z
%Z6e losvesz  |o0zze'z loorvpe's log6z' L1 Z6'89L') 00'018 _ $39.4 9OUBUBIUIEIN ZHW 008 - 1SSC05E]
%6 loz'610'2-  00'vog'se  leeessll lsivisy | owsse ‘es'vS6 3oueNdiwo) |eIUBILOIALT - 0GELOST|
%0'00L- 00629~ 00006t lo0rszg lo00 00'szL | 00 _ sasio1exa AaueBrows3 - 00£E0SE |
%LZ0L  |pzS0Z'v | 00'8Z8'6 lo0's60'% lvz00e's 00648 056292 PlowlY - suLopun - 0008052
%ZIW9  |OVIEV'S | 00'SE0Z [06'2v8 lo0'gez'e 85694 000 Py “qns § $anQ - 09ZZ05Z|
%L 8- lZzeso's-  00'09Z'bL lso'1v6' €4°906 €e88L'L 000 _ S3UBLGIUIRW [OARLL - 00LZ0SZ] |
%gaL €6019' | 00'809'%L | |sores0'e zrsIp'L eeL1z'l 000 80UBUBIUIEY - UOREONPZ - 0G0Z0SZ|
%G9l 160'902 [o0000'e loo'0sz't 60°9Gp'L " oo0se ‘06862 _ seag Buissasoud [1oiAed - §20Z05Z |
%00 1000 l000 | Tooo 000 000 000 PlaILIY-30UBLUBIUIEIN 818IS - 0S6L0SZ |
%96 BE0V0'T | 00RO'LS | |segoziiz ¥L'80E'EZ 196627 | pBpLES 11O PUE SED 2SUBLXT AOIYDA - 00SL0SZ |
%489~ £TT6V'-  |00°00L'SE lsorivs'e Z6v0'z |€E°80€°L 6E°€SL _ PIYAY - "Yond “dinb3 WIEW - 0SVL0SZ|
045l €9080'L  |000DL'9LL loo'sze'sr '£9°'501'SS [00'529%6 sroez'e wawdinba pro1Iy WIBW - 0011052
%151 8§2LLL |000SL'LL | leercee orels's VB Ob'999 30UBUAJUIRIY SPUNOID PIBIHIY - LSELOSE
l%g6e ZEGYS'LL 0008102 lsoivz'ez | guesOv | ceeve's | 0b'8is'S PIBIIY - BOUBLRIUIRK - 0GEL0SZ|
(%0001 SLbZE'S 0094l lsivze's 000 legv90°L ‘000 soueusuiew Bunybi - 00£L0ST |
g (%0001~ Se'EE80z-  |00°000°08 | Tseees'oz 000 29991y 000 PI2IHIY - [EAOUISY MOUS - 0SZL0SZ |
l%ezs Sr'lez'e  00°008'L€ |00'05251 5v'186'SZ looost'e  se0zev PloIY - 5suadxg eoueInNSU| - G0ZLOSZ
l%L'ge 0519 loo'0zy loo'szL ‘05°9¢z loo'se zLzs PlalyIY - JS1eM-INN - 0S110SZ|
%9725 1rsl0z 0000v's | loooos'e LIS1S'S oo 00z 95'9.8 Plaly - suoydela1-nn - 001102, |
%bor Z€09k- 000009 lo0'008'z . g9BEET |oo-aos l000 PISYLY - auedoid-in - 090L0SZ.
|%g'06-  68'8S8'0L- 0000882 10000021 LbpLL |oooor'z lszolze PIBLIY - 0L)9913-0N - 000LOSZ |
%6z 8695  00'60Y°9% 0L ZEE'6L zL8Ll'gL |zv208'¢ lseaLs'e PIBLAIY - UoWBINSY - 0SE00SZ
%926 15286 l00'zz9 ‘5186z |99°95€ | lesis sz PIRYIY - 4eSId 17/9eS!d LS - 008002 |
%6 'ge'z6l- 00'ZE8'L se'eoz's 16020 29289 80600 PIS1IY - 8ouBINSU| 917 - 0520052
l%Lgl- o5 vb8'e-  00'850°GZ1 ogol'ze | |09'z9Tey los1zr0L lo0'zov'oL PIoLAIY - *ddng/ sul ylESH - 00Z00SZ.
l%81- \z1'g6E- 00z} 1'eg 0069222 lggeselz |00'828'% [1rzo6'e PIaIIY - Sexe ] ||oJARd - 05100SC
%Le- 16096~  00'6/8ES  oo'99z'Le |60'50€°08 |00'g9z°g1 |ze'689'01 PIBILIY - SWILIBAQ - LS000SZ
l%er loLeLo’ll  00'90z'509 00'88€°252 |01"90v'892 looare'ty |vorz68'2t plewty - sabep - 0000052
sasuadx3 pjayuy
abueyn % Bueyo ¢ Bpng | 186png LA 61 AON - N[ 12Bpng 6l AON _
610¢ 19qUIBAON

@oueuwLiouad }abpng sso pue jyoid

Auoyny podiy spieweqy-ajjIaseopey )




%901 9E'S0L'TE- b rLEErLT 02 L0E' 728 ¥8'109'18L ¥9'€65 681 05265°Ch) sesuadx3 Bunpeg [B10L
9 use lsz'esc'se-  00°000'052 l00'008'z1E zULeTre 00°008'29 000 6102 uoIsUBdX3 Bupiied 8BNS - Z08E0S)
l%000L 000 |bo'850'r8 loo0 looo 000 000 Bupiied 991AI9S 1990 POOZ - LOBEOSE
%00 loo'o logoLe'esl loo'zee’'as loozee'es ov'9.2'sh lovaszel | Bupised 831A19S 1990 P10 - 00801
%0001 0058 00°b02 ~ loo'ss loao 0021 ‘000 asuadx3 1qeq peg - 0SLE05L
%0'POL-  007ZS- 00°02L 00'08 loo'z- ‘0001 lo00 _ H0US § JOAD - SOLEDSL
%L~ |62'599'h-  l00'000'022 '59'999'16 9800006 ECEEE'sl leeze6 sl 5394 pied wpa1) Bupued - 00LE0SE
%186 |vo0sg'z- 000002 '59°916' 1098 £EE8s ‘000 | Bupieg-swiopun - 000S0S)
%0'8 68261 00°016'S 0529tz [Lovazz 05°z6 1000 Bupped-asuadx3 Sa[oIUBA - 00205}
%E Ly |se'eg 00°8bY " soesl loo'sz ege lo0'siz _ Bupjied - 'sqng @ sona - 052205+
%000k |SE'8SK'l- 00008 gegst'L loo'o 19'162 lo00 _ BupEd - [OABIL - 00LZ0SL
%0'00L-  |SZIEE'L-  00CELE S7'1€E'L loo'o \sz'99z looo Bunjied - uoieaNpP3 - 0502051
%G9l |s0'90z 00°000' 00052’ |50 951 loor0sz | |osgsz saod Buissedoud [10:Aed - 6Z0Z0SL
%606 log'seo’'s  ooooc'el lso1pg's |se'as5'0L leeB0L't |ogroee'z 1uog oiyyes) 3 aBeubig-Bupued - LOOZOS)
%08 lozver'e  ooovs's lo0sze'e loz'691°2 l00'62 |z1osee | Bupped - saddng - 0002051
%28e logesz  00'00E'0E " looszo'zh |0z goe's 00'625' |ee'0821 aoueualuIel “dinb3 Bupued - 00¥LOGL
%128 lse'eze's- 0000202 sooL'e |oe880't e£E89’t [vz'sL sdaig/syioogpuswened Buppied - LGELOSE
%001 |z6'6ES'-  00'008'804 lse'eee'sy levessior |29'990'6 lezseL'y aouBUSUIRW SPUNOIE Bupped - 0SELOSE.
%g'9e lg9zze’t 000002 100°000'S |g9zz8'e lo0'000'L loo'o BunuBi 107 Bupiied - 00EL0SE
%0rpe- leco08't- 000008 ‘seeee's lz0EES’) 297999 |zoeest | Bupued - [eAOwey MOUS - 0SZLOGE |
%z b5 lseer'z 0098904 | ogzsy'y |sg'goe'e los o6 | leszi Bupiseq - asuadxg eaurinsy] - 00ZLOSE
%e- 6L 00008 - loosz [1g0z1 loosz svel Buyied - JDIEMABN - 064LOSL.
%e'9 ‘ersie '00°000ZL 00000 leraie's |oo'000't lec1z6 Bunjied - suoydaeL-in - 00LLOSE |
%215 \res6-  000bYY 00'058' |65°€68 loooze |90 te- SWB17 Bunped-IBN - 0L0LOSL.
l%g'1z- |86'Lva'e-  0o0L5'0F GLt06'9) |L1zezel legose'e [vovvee | Bunjed - uewaey - 05£0051 |
%00t~ 185z 00'959'L 51'689 lveely legseL log'sz Buppied - qBSIQ L1/9ESIA LS - 008001
l%070z- 97185~ 00°08E'9 " lee'ssoz 602212 |29'1e8 |sor1er _ Bupiied - aauBINSU| 81T - 0SZ00SL
%01 [oo'108 00'8rr'6LL 00'022'6b loo'12'08 loovse's |ooeso'el Bunjied - -ddnsysul YieaH - 0020051
%80 l6z'8LL- 00'€68'GE 0028671 [Leisyy loossp'e lsrezze Bupised - sexe] jjo1Aed - 051001
|%g91- |68'PLO'S  00'9E8'6L . ooose'ee [tiee'oe lo0928'v2 8189021 Bunjied - SWILIBAD - 0S000SE |
%0 \Le'ezy 00'sl8'pee 100°980°291 [Le'vorzoL loo'oze'oe [vzyigioe Bunjied - sabem - 0000081
sasuadx3g Buppey
efiueys s, | ebueyn¢  jabpng enuuy 1ebpng qLA | 61 AON - IO jebpng 61 AON
610¢ foquIsAnON

2JueuwLIOMad 39Bpng sso pue Jjoid
Auoyiny uodily ajiewaqiy-s|jiAsapoLey )




(%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 [BUIWIB | 821A18S 1090 Y00Z - LOSE0ST
%0004 oz'zse loo0 | ooo 0z'zsE loo0 18978 | 994 pIED Npa1) 96UNoT - 150E0SE
|%6ze- 09000  |00°00Z'6Z S99zl g0oal's leeeer'z ‘szayl' aBunojiejuag ssaulsng - 0G0L0SE|
%L e 9v'BS- 00000 |s9°099')  BLgs0’L leeeee . geEse SI0PESSEqUIY/OIIAIAG JOWOISND - 0Z0E0SE| |
l%arve L9'66F'L 0000101 | lseeeey '96°2€8'S |29°998 00002 Aeyes oqng - swuopun - 0L0LOSE, |
%00 000 lo00 000 000 lo00 o000 waysAs Buibed [euiwia) - 00gzZose |
ot L9~ 05'8LS' 00°6LL'S | opzise ‘ov'e66 lsgvLg loo'sez | [eulIB ) - SQNS @ Sanq - 092205 |
a2 ge- ‘gL E6' | 00BSl'es sgole'el | L9'9:8'8 [21essz [10'945°) suonesjunwwog Aausbiawsg - 00ZZ0S¢
%00 000 lo0'0 " 00 00'0 loo0 o000 [ 19€29U0D [BUONUES - 0G1Z0SE |
l%ge LLSSY lac-000'08 00°008'Z1 LL'GS6'ZL lo0005'2 000 oOUBUAUIEN VAV - OLLZOSE |
q %068 6L'SPS'2L- | 00°000'0S lse'ees'oz ‘918822 29001y 80'v8Y edURUBIUIEN SPId - Z0LZ0SE |
3 (%LELL 68TLLWE  |00°005'%6 | loosie'se 68°LL '8 loos28'2 z5°918'sz aouBLBIIEW DVAH - 10LZ0SE|
3 %8G8 lozvel'lz 0006165 | loczeevz | lorelser 05Ze6'Y 00'bS aouBUBIUIEY 101e|EDST JOJEASIT - 00LZ0SE |
%0716 [186EL's- | 00'SER'EZ | loweeozt | leesgs | zelovz ‘€588 | Kiajes 211and - uoyedNp3 - 050Z0GE |
%G9l |60'902 lo0000'€ loo0sz'L |60'9gt'L 00082 06862 994 BuIss900.d |104KRd - 5Z0Z0SE | |
%E LG 2806 00L18'ER | loviszer | |siz9sz Zv'ls9'e 80°020'T sanddng [euojuer - 010Z0GE |
%989 lovase’s 0005211 |serg68'y |spes’s 1166 08992 eoueusjuiey wiel) ebebbes - 0021068
%6°EG vrS08's-  00'Z09'€Z | Ta1vess | 1rezey £8'996'L 1S0ELT 2ouBdIOD YHSO - 0S910SE |
%pIpL G908 000MEL lse'g0e'e looger's /9199 000 _ BuideaspueT feunusal - 009106¢ | |
%68 180z~ 00000z [soaLv'0L 182'69'L £E'€80'C 9L'9Ly aBeuBiS [eulwIe] - 05GL0SE |
%9zt looger-  oooov'z | looao0's | loobes 00002 00'0 uoyesuqes Buplom - 0S10SE|
%99t lo00ss'e- | 00't0S'8L | looorzz lo00zL'y 00ZYS' 000 _ duwejey - Z0106¢ | |
PART. |9E'6S6- | 00°006'0L lso1vs'y l6z'z8s's £E'806 627285 [eUIWIB | - "Y9ing dInb3 “Juley - 0GP L0GE |
%bGe lsz'168'7L  00°008'28 | [sesspioe log'eve'sy 190624 8090T'LL | [EUIULID | - BAUBLBIUIER - 0SELOCE |
(%0001~ SB0Z¥'T  |00°018'G |s8 02Kz 000 R 000 _ [BUILIB L — [EACLUSY MOUS - 0GZ10SE |
%60 loseg0'z  00'00S' LY 5916221 lsg'see' e eCesy'e | Se'esTy [eujuLa | - asuadxg B3UBINSU| - 00ZHOGE |
96708~ veI86'e-  |00072'69 | |oooso'sz 9v°890'02 loooLe's 1656y lesods|q-inn - 09L10SE | |
%62 l€oBBY'L | 00°000'SH |00'0s2°81 £9682'02 loo0sz'e 906012 [BULLIB] - JEM-INN - 0L LOSE |
l%1Bl- 26786~ 000007, | |ooooo's £V L50' 00°000'} 69'82L leujuw | - auoyda|aL-19N - 00LLOSE |
(%0001~ SOLKO'L-  |00°008'C ls9'Lv0'L " oo0 " leesoz 000 [eUIULB) - SUBdOIG-IN - 09010SE | i
|%ge |8v'99¥'L  00'000'0% |s9'099'91 pLeeL's) leceee's 00'928'8 feuuLIB L - 1O-INN - 0SOMOSE |
%tz lez6le't | 00'000'08E | |oo0o0's2 €2'618'0L 000006k 6L'8S0'GL [BURWIB | - 930]T-INN - 000LOSE| |
9% 2- lzeBIr'T- 0080822 loo'sez'ze \8r'528'62 'oo6st's Zr's8's [BUIWIB ] - JUSWBIRAY - 0SEO0SE |
|%t'9z- lpeBle-  |00'B06'Z lsoLiz't | lezes eETre eL'99L [eujuL | - qeSIQ 17/98S1a 1S - 00E00SE |
% tbs- ‘zgz9e-  00659'LL | lszacey €865y SZT'LL6 ‘eegoe [BUjWIS ] - SOUBINSY] 317 - 0SZ00SE |
a %991 0L90¥'LL- | 00°ELY'ZSE lovzzi'sol ov'gos'8 [zrpea'tz 09°910'81 leuuuia | - ddngysu) yajeaH - 00Z00SE |
92 €rpe9'z- 0008168 | lovossize 15°626'7E loologz  gsoLee leupa | - saxe] ||ouhed - 0S100SE |
v %o 8LLEL'8L | 00°5TS L looeot'vz 8L'0vL'ep looeap'LL Wiss [PUILLIB | -OUNLIBAG - 150005E| |
|%ge- S8'692'SZ-  00'8V6'LL0') lo0'sg0'0g 5168208 lo0'616'28 662869 [euIa | - soBEM - 000005
[ i [ | | | sosuedxg jeuwual |
oBueun% & ebueyg$ | 3eBpng fenuuy 198png OLA 61 AON - Inp 126png 6 AON [
6102 19qUIaAON

aouewIOMa }9Bpng sso pue jjoid
Aoyiny podupy spewsqy-s|iAsaloleyD




%E'ess  ZEELOLOF  bhO- l00'Leeze [soveses | lovvscue | ozsziue

%6 lorvse'see- vrivzotes OVELE'SLS'E  |OVBEE'6EZ'E | |28Z98'6E. | |6V696'6L9

l%o0or 0001 Tooo 000 0001 loo'o lo0'0

%0z l61I69'zz  00'€29'799' SEBSELLLL  YOOSOPENL | |LLUBL0ZZ | |89'968'ET

%6°81- 1505z 00641 062zl 86240' 85792 00'€8L

%0'00L-  SESEE':-  00°0SE'S 'sgrcee’ lo0'0 ltvezz | Jooo

%t 85~ l05°z81- 00°052 oszLE loooes log'ze T Tooo |

l%tg '10'002 00°08€'LE ogzeo'er | 16zeltl losz19z [vz'801

%zeL 90'L8'ZL 00002 LY 59'991'21 Wrzer'sz leceer's loovar'sz

%bres- lzgarr'l- 000089 5E'802' leg-09z') l29'1v8 lo06z1

%126 leg'BOY'  00°00L'9L '6£886' lee-Bog'El 19°16E'L loeg9g'e
aBueyg o, | ebueyn¢  jabpng jenuuy 1o6png QiA 61 AON - N[ 196png 61 AON

610¢ 18quWaAoN

aouewloiad Jobpng sso1 pue jyoid
Auoyiny poduly apewaq)y-9jjiAsejouey D

mEOu:_.Em:_P_O 9N _
asusdx3 |ejo "
sobieys aainies jueq - 0682059 .
sasuadxy |euusa | _Eo._..
suonesddQ - |2ae) - cSNNmn. .
suopesedQ - uoljesnpy - 050ZZSE
asuadxg Bumoy - 0SZZLSE |
Ayages ojand - 9Ae1L - 00LZLSE
ABojouyaay Ajojes aNjand - LEOZLSE
sa|lddng SW3 - 0£0Z1.5¢
fvges - 000Z1LSE




OV9EZ LY ©8'Z9L'GE6' - | €L Z6V'SHE CLOVZOLY | LZBLVYT
96'SEZ'Z LV b GY'LEP'E98's | | LE'EL'9S £C'989°TLE- | EGPKS'LLL-
00'080°¥ES"Y 00'002'688'L SVEBR'ZES'L | 000VE'LLE £8'9/9'€E
00'080°vES'Y 00'002'688'1 07 L08°08%'L  0O0'OVB'LLS 1€'108'92€
loo0 | ooo lszzss'zel 000 | evisez
[vopr8'Le lse'gas'sz l9zBE0'BPO’ L L9'BSL'S 0E'VEL'THE
. [ | letsers | o0 _
_ | lovoerar | looveee |
POpE'Le lsegos'sz | |sesar'ez 19°ESL'S 19°€51°S
000 | looo |zvoee'oss’t | 000 | eooszeez |
98'068' v 0v'Z68'05)
loo0 | looo | lezeos'ses 000 | lesseLyL
. . | vosezey 000 |
| ] | vzzizese | loe's9z'so
abueys % | eBueypg  jeBpng jenuuy 19Bpng QLA | 61 AON - Inp 1ebpng 61 AON
6102 18WIBAON

Aoyiny podity sjiewaqy-ajjinseyopey)

aosuewlopad }obpng sso pue yjoig

awoouy 18N

BWoau| JAYIQ 19N
asuadxg Y30 [e30L
uoneziowy g uopeisoideg| |
SASNTAX3 D49
asuadxgy uw_._«o.
3WOooU| IO (€10 |
SPoBa0.d WIE|D SoUBINSY| - 00ZVOYY| |
abeIoA0D - D40 - LOBLOSO|
lexded psinguuo) aully - cccrano.
suonnquuo) jexden _muc._..
SPuNJ Odd - 0009PZ0 |
anueASY LCHONSUOY JJe)S
fendes peInquyuog yoafold
Spung anuaAdY 949
suonnquiuoy |epden |
2Woou| 180 |
asuadxgfewoau| Joyio




%000

SpUOg 104 MOIIST %ST'E

%SY0-
%YT0
syefoad uo pasn | %58°0-

%6T'ST-
%TE'T
%9E L
%2561

%000
_ %611
SIN0aso[d 10) Suniepn
. S3]qeAIa03. 311S PuUe Y4 %000
s|1iq Aed 01 Apeau foad dep Joy Buipung %ee TTE

ueJI9) 91€1S BUISO|I UBYM BA|0S3I 0L  9%60'TZ-

333(0ud [eutwIB] Joj de) 01 Spun4 adeJan03 %000
sdQ |ewioN %T1/'62-
120 ui predaad wniwaid wayuy %/9°S6-
UOI120(|2 AJYIUOW [BLUIOU $SIIIN[O4 SOURINSU} %05 ZT-
UOIIEJO| | AJYIUOW [BULIOU SIIDI|Od URINSU| %05 7T~
spuny [e20] yum s303(0Jd/yse) Ul 3sea139q  %60°Sz-

%
papaau se suoijeuejdx3

| 8EE'S

(T£9's8)

(91'pE8)

(v61'87)
| osg'zT
l(LvT'6E)
 ¥e1'89

0
| 80T'LT

0
| €2Z'8TL

(t9£'0Z0'T)
0

(££'66)
(vET'PY)

(z8p)
(bez'eT)
(r£9'p98)

3aduey)

(065°0€T'6T 065'0€T'6T
¥E9'STT 962'0T
|9£8v6E VT LYS'08Y'VT
589'9GT 589'95T
089'099'6 ST8'P6Y0T
T0¥'LST §65'S8T
€60'6t6 ZvL'9g6
¥95'6% TTL'TES
YST'LTY 190'61€
0 0
LT6'V9T'T 608 LPT'T
BLY'Lty 8LV LYY
7/8'8¥6 059°0€C
£€0°028°s 86L'0v8Y
88T'ET6 S8T'ET6
66L'VET 'SEO'PEE
000'Z VET'9Y
PLE'E 958’
8€9's8 €08'16
6E0'T8S'C ETL'SPY'E
AON 10

0207 1.3 |e3sl
UOIHSO( 19N JO JUBWA)LIS
Aoyiny podaly spewaq)y-aj1asaopey)

“Wawdinba pue syuswaaoidwi ‘sSuipjing
pueq
s)ossy [eude)
sjusjeAinb3 yse) pue yse)
Spun4 puog anu3aAdyY
$)9SSY PaIdLISOY
S}aSSY JUa44N)-UON

$13sse PaILISaI [0 L
1MOIIST WYA Y5BD
SIUBWIISIAU|
‘Spung puog anuaAY
S1U3jeAINba ysed pue ysed
'spund Juawapnul ajes
EETLEIEREN
pun4 aoueuuIB V1D Ysed
pund [eJauss D4) ysed
pung 243 ysed
:spung adiey) Ajey se) |ejuay
$9|qeAIDIDY
sju3jeaInba ysed pue ysed)
ispun4 adaey) Ajjoed Ja3uassed
S9|qeAIa2aY
sluajeainba ysed pue ysed
:spung jeyden
151955y Pa1ILIISIY
$]OSSY JUdIN) UON

51955y pPa1RLIsaIun [e10)
Spun{ palaMIsayY wold ang
19U-3|qBAIRI3 SIUNOIY
sasuadx3 piedaid
Aufaed 1) |eusy - aoueunsuy predald
33ueunsuy piedaid
SiuajeAaInba ysed pue ysed
1S19SSY paplIsaIun
1819SSY uUaLIND)
S$19SSy




%000

pua-1eaA 3e pa1snipy %000
pus-1eaA 1e pasnipy %00°0

papaau se suoneueidx3

%ET0-
%02°0-
%0Z°0-

%590

%000

%5t'0-
%

(€28'660'T)

(=]}

(=]

(€28'660°T)

0199

(424

| £L0'8TE

0

'(108'9z€)

aduey)

6VL'EET'ETT  TLS'EEEPCT
L¥8E8E L¥8'E8E
|8T1'8SE 8TY'8SE
|6T¥'sT 6T¥'ST
|€06'6V8'2ZT STL'66'€TT
|066'7€9'¥0T 08€'879'v0T
|95€°60S 70T ¥80'805'¥0T
|S8E"CITY ZIE'vER'S
. 9%s'LS 9%5'4S
|SE8'850°T8 9£9'S8E'T8
AON PO

0¢0¢ 1894 |edsly
uonIsod 19N JO JudWIL}S
Ajsoyiny Uodily ajIewagy-a|1IAsanojey)

SMO|JINQ Pa4iajaQ pue s}assy |ejol

S224N0S3 JO SMO|JAN0 PaII3BP |RI0L
SUOIINQLIJUOD) UOISUId
SUOIINGLIUOD g3d0 3T wudL dnolo
S224N0SAY 4O SMONINQ paaIayaqg

S13SSV jejoL

$13SSY JUALIND-UON [B101

(22adoap *moe jo Jau) s1assy |ende) jerog
ssas8oud ur uopanisuo)

uonezijowe pue uejd I1315eA)
uoneaidap jo 1u




%ET0- (€28'660'T)  GYL'EET'ETT  TLS'EEE'VTT UonIsod 19N pue smojju| paJsajeq ‘salljiqer [e10l
%00 |(6T¥'v2) (6TIE6E'LTT 8E0'STY'LTT uonIsod 19N 1oL
%059 [(£98'9T0T) [TLTV8TT 8E0TOE'E 1pa3RLIsAIUN
%LTT | 91166 |€0T°208°2T 876°018'TT paLIsay
%120~ TLTT _3m.8m.~9 ££0°90£20T 1955V {ende) ui paisaau|
uoljisod 12N
%000 0 |SBETHT SEETHT sasuadx3 uoisuad
%000 0 _coo\wﬁ 000FT sasuadx3 9340 - 9j17 wus [ dnouig
$924N0S3Y JO SMOjju| pauIdyaqg
%I8E- (E0V'SLO'T)  |SELVR9'S 6ET'09L9 sonIjiqel| ;1oL
| 4] 956'€YT E 9S6EVT'E S3INIGEI] JUILIN)-UON [eI10),
W %000 0 |S¥6'r68 Sv6'768 Ajngen uoisuad 18N
" %000 |0 |000°LtT 1000°L¥T Aujigen g340 soueunsu| uuaj dnoug 18N
" %000 0 |z88'reL 88'veL sueo 23pug YOUA 03 ang
| : %000 0 |VET'T6 vET'T6 BIMIFS 120 VYA 900Z d/N
pua-1eaA je pajsnipe 398 asay L %00°0 0 968'PLET 968'VLE'T unodsip puoq
. . paziuoweun Jo 1au ‘9)qeAed spuoq anusasy
‘saniigen uanin)-uon
| . (%ESET- ”aom.ﬁoi l6sg'rze't 89€'66L'C S1955Y PAILISIY WI0SY SIY|IGET] BLIN) |elo)
dx3 dwey/dx3 Bupied seiqeded [ended %€926-  (v68V¥0'T) | ¥06°0SC 86L'G62'T alqeAed siunody jende)
a8eule1ay Bunwayd %000 |(5T9'92) STEYSS 0£608S ajqehed aSeujelay
| %00°0 |0 88T'ET6 88T'C16 spung pajpuIsalun 03 eng
pua-leaA Je pajsnipe 5188 s1yL %0070 0 |esv'e E€Sv'6 IsaJ3)U| panudy
| [ | 1$195SY Pa31ILIsay Wwouy ajqeded
%TTE- [(s68°¢) loz6'zTL 'ST89TL S19S5Y Pa12l41salun) wosy SAY[IGeN] JUBLIND [eIo)
puim|iel £99°g “aullie Jayroue pue ued|od y/z7 PIO %00°0 0 |£19'2E L19°2€ spuoq "yad/dap A3ndas d/y
pus-ieah e paisnipe 108 SIyL| %0070 0 8ST'6LT 8ST'6LT OAB3| panJldy
pus-Jeak je paisnipe s3e8 sy %000 0 [z88'7TT |zes'zz1 ltoJAeq pan.ody
%te's-  (568°E) €92'8LE 851°Z8¢ s|qeded sjunoddy
| | 151955y Pa191I1SAIUN Wol4 sjqeded
saniqer uauan)
UoNISOd 19N pue SMmojju| paliagaq ‘senjiqer
% 98uey) AON 120
pepaau se suofjeue|dxy|
0T0T Jea, jeosiy

uonisod 19N §0 JIWIIL)IS
KAuoyiny podaly spewaqy-ajimsenopey)




$50uF Jou-onuaAax JqEUCISESANn]),,
00TEISY 799'1ST's  LoB'BKO'D 9BL'GIOL  16K'088'9 LE¥'SBTL  SeL'I9l's vBH'E8L'S SoV'6vS's  LZT166'6 001°95¥'01 %I 9EV'LOL'E  S9L'GEI'Y %6 99L°¢66 L5H'880°1 #INUBNIY JD) [OrUIY
€0L20S  POI'I9E  9TT'9E9 636049  698'699 SLSLOL SBLTIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9600801 PIB'SLY' T 66L°0VLT 1990007 %€l 611°099  €E5'viL %8 776881 0£0'861 ‘OT7 'spuispng
1oy g/ oo,y
ITE6V'T  TTH'9PS'T  69¢'269'T  S04°198'C TEE'TV6T TV ISp'vere 951°05E°E 909'480°  890°ST1' OLS°0V0'S %€l SOS'S6S' T +8E66L'T %61 ocz'oTy €TL66Y P jhof
EPB'9SH'E  086'I6K'T  SLO'6E9'l  00T'SHL'L TICEVB'l  SELTR6T  200'LOT'T 60'Y2Ce 9EV'EGY'T  VH6'LI6T 8CTY'IEL'E  %LI TP6'6SI°T  ZSI'8SE'l %Lz 985°96T I3€'9LE aunary
vil'Le 106'SL 119°'¢s 01$'98 8ET'TL $80'€9 886'99 TI8'09 PL6'TS 0 [ %0 0 0 %0 0 0 V-iaf oy
VOI'SE8  €9E'TIE  SOT'TMG £Tv'6% 06’696 192'800'1  016'366 TeL010°L LTTELO'T  €9TT1TT ¥80°95T°1 %l SBY'RY  p9ITr  %I- EP6'SII L8E'311 y-ier apiodio)y yn
098I LAY 81579 SLT'09 798°s5 Z08'95 1$5's V1574 ¥26'sp 198'8¥ €POor %ST 6LO'LI 85561 %L 169 £00°S T1001- D
padung suojivg pry og.r
T106'8LKT  SHT'00LT  LOS'€007 ELE'E6I'Z  STOPEIT LILH9'T  10K906'T L61°380'c OBL'SLE'S  LSP'SEE'Y 0TV'08Sy %S SOR'10S'T  GO9'6LST %z LL8'VTY 30t 1€Y INUINDY Fupyiog
SLOVET  9EI'98C  TI'66T  63L°DIE 9ZTG6T  TTSLOE $S6°TLE LeT'ove L9TT6E  THS'FTH 6OI'9Ly %L €LE'9ST 981291 %t ¥56'TY L6v'vh Sag oAy
%59 %69 %ZL %SL %91 %18 %98 %8 %08 %28 YobL %1 %6L %18 %0 %28 %e8 40j20,] pvoy pouniduy
09UZLT  L98'661  Z69'tlz  99MIET  w6r'orT ¥91'z€T 891'19Z $ITv8E TIS'EIE  065°LbE tI0'vLe %8 L8E'STL  TOLSEl %S 78T'SE LTIt sa8uassoy pauvpdaq
6S9'LLT 090961  698'STT  ILSTET  wis'LIT 865'8£7 1€9'197 0£0'98C 660°S1E  TT6'SPE IWH'8LE %8 EETVEL  959°pEl %€ 91E'sE LEV'OE S23uassv g paunydusy
£2T°€8 1L1E8 L9578 SELLL 20L°TL LI0LL E66'CL, IEE'79 869°39 08L's8 18¢'46 %¥ SE9'VE ¥86'st %1- 85T'6 8L1'G suoywsadpy pa g
YSE'E £80'¢ 8I1'E £90°y LSy'E LYY ¥SL'E [1g's ne'y 9729 LUty %2S 9L wo0LT %IT 80L ¥s8 gy
$L0'8I ¥6TLI 98+'0¢ YZE'OT 608°31 o0¥00T $TS61 Y601 €211 L9881 : %L 6rT'6 SL8°6 %I- 897'C TsTT UonDIY [DioWID)
.qpaoy
1£8°1 ¥86°1 ¥sL'l L6T°T ¥E0°'T 188°1 £88'1 L00'T €EI'T 69T°C : %0b vl 101 %82 302 992 Loupy
887'6E PoETY F6E'SE 196'€E ¥20'1€ $8.'08 7828 LEETT 8bT'sz £FF0E , %2~ 1LZT71 SE0°T1 %9- LLI'e 0662 HOHDISY [o42U2T)
SL9'0T TIv'61 $19'81 [ A z8e'Ll ¥1T'0T 600'02 78L'61 3] K4 SLELT %€~ 86501 1€€°01 %€~ L68'T 918°T POLf2048D) Al
‘evsaung
suonvLdQ o4ty

6102 Jea) [edsid-sonsnels Bunesadp i 4o 5w ¥



3018 10U-3NIAAS) SIqUUOISSAN)),
00ZEISY  T99°18T'S  L98'8K0'D 96L°610°L  1EL'088°0  L6V°S8T'L SEL'TIN'S P8Y'ERL'S

S61'6VS'6  LIT166'6 BO1'9SE0l %01 PLI'SKO'y  BIE101°S %9 SEL'LYR 055°106 +PRUMIY 1D pruy
E0L'Z0S  ¥OI'196  9TT'BE9  696'0L9 698699  SiS°L9L S8LTIL
0 0 (i} 0 0 0 0 960°080°T WE'SLY' T 66L'0LT 1990007 %01 $09'9€8 3116 %0 s81'9Ll 159°9L1 071 'spuyinf,
i 101y f28va242G/p00
HE6ZY'T TTVOVS'T 695'L69T S0VI98T  THEINE'Z THSIIT'E  ISbeTe 9ST1'0SE'E 909'480°c  890°8TI'y 0LS'0V0'S  %TI TSLA'T  €LV'LTT  %OI L9ETEY 880°LLY Pny jmoy,
EVB9SH'T  086'I6V'T  SLO6ES'I 0OZ'SKL  ZOFEEL SEL'TRE'T  TON'LOI'T T60'VTL'T EYECY'T  PI6LIG'T STYBEL'E %S 0SL'I8K'T  ETE'TILT %ol 608'12¢ 1L1'esg gy
12091 106'€L, 119°€s 01598 SET'TL ¥80'€9 886'99 21809 ¥LE'IS ()} S1 %0 g1 0 %0 ST 0 y-1ap Aaopppy
VEY'EER  £OE'LI6  SOTTVG  STv'696 066696  198°R00°T 016'866 TTLO10"T LTTELO'T  E9TTITL ¥30°95ZT %t 1€0°SZS  6Z6'0KS %I 9p<'901 SSTHIE y-1ar amaodioy o
098°LL 8L1'69 815'79 SLZ'09 798'ss 79%°'0¢ 18"l 0ES'PS ¥T6'sy 198°8% £H0'9Y %8I 9L0'1T 124 %LL L66'S 299y TI00I- VO
padung suoyvs png Og.1
106°8LY'T  SPI0OL'T  L0S'€00T ELE'S6I'T  8TObEI'T LVL'Y09T  [0V'906'T L61'930'E 06L'SLE'S  LSY'SEE'Y 0Tr'o8s’y %t LLU'SB8'T  BLV'E96'T  %I- TLE'0BE €LBERE MUY Jupying
SL0'P6T  9EI'99T  TBI'66T  6BLOIC  9IT'66T TTS'L0E $65'zZE LET'OVE L9T'TeE  THS'yTh GOI'9LY %9 GEL'96L  ¥hY'60T %S 99£°08 85T'TY sipag ajqupoay
%69 %69 %L %EL %9L %I %98 %8 %08 %28 LA %I %08 %I8 %0 %28 %28 so1on poey paunydusg
09T'LLL  L9B'S61  T69'ETT  99KIET  b6L9IZ  191'TSL 291°192 81Z¥8Z TIS'EIE  065'LYE [I0°VLE  %¢ IvS'LST  0TE'691 %l PSTTE 85€'€E sao8uzssog pauvydoq
6SYLLL  090'961  698'SIT  ILSTEC  tL8UTT  R6£°SET 1€9°192 0£0°982 660'SIE  TT6'BKE Iv'8LE %8 PEO'LST  0ST'691 %S¢ 106'28 $65'vE s4a8uassvg pouvpdug
£TT'E ILI'E8 L9¢'T 8EL'LL 90L°TL £90"LL £66°SL 1€€'29 8c8'89 08L'se 185°'L6 %9 £TT'TY 095'pt %El 885°L 9L5'3 suopvizdQ mof
¥SE'E L80'¢ 8I's £90° LSY'E L¥T'y ¥sL'e 1is's ey 92Z9 TErY %I1§ ' viz's %8y 9bE us Konppy
$LO'ST w6T'L1 9840 vZe'or 60881 0r0°'0T NAY 3 $60°%1 AR L£98'81 E9EET %2l ¥oL'ol £50°C1 %EY $08'1 81'z uopDlay prtouar)
poaory
1€8°1 ¥86°T PSL'l 7744 PEO'T 188°1 £88'1 L00°T £El'T 692°C £08'T %EE LZ6 1£2°1 %T o8t 061 Loy
88T'6¢ veETY p6e'se 19¢'¢e $eo'1€ $8L°0€ 78L°8T LE6'7T WT'sT EPF0E 01 %]I- €LI'ST £36'71 %z 06T 8462 UOHDIY posouar)
sL9'oz sl SE9'ST VA Z8ELI ¥izor 6¥0°0T 78L°61 svi'se 197954 UR6'0E %l- LTl 660°CT %¥ 6¥9'T 89L'T IXOL 400D Ay
D4}
suonviadg osraty
A o L= o -] ] L J
6102 1edA [edsiy-soysiels bunesodo



CHO

R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: January 30, 2020

SUBJECT: Action Item #1 — Annual Appointment of a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman,

and the Secretary/Treasurer

RECOMMENDATION: To select a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, and the Secretary/Treasurer in
accordance with the Authority’s enabling legislation.

BACKGROUND: Chapter 864 of the Acts of Assembly of 2003 § 6 states “The Authority
shall annually elect one of its members to serve as chairman, and another member to serve as vice
chairman.” Historically the Commission also performs this same appointment for consistency.

The same section also states, “The Authority shall also elect annually a secretary/treasurer, who may or
may not be a member of the Authority.”



e

CHO

A I R P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority

FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: January 30, 2020

SUBJECT: Action Item #2: FY-2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to Accept the FY-2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as presented.

BACKGROUND: As noted within the transmittal letter on page one of the FY-2019

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; this report has been published in accordance with the
requirements of the enabling legislation as well as the master bond indenture of trust which governs the
issuance of indebtedness by the Authority. Moreover, it was prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the Authority’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 are free of material misstatement. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
(“clean”) opinion and that the Authority’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 are in
conformity with GAAP. Within the accompanying FY-2019 CAFR Management Letter, the auditors
have identified two items of concern along with recommendations to address these items. The following
are the two items that were identified and staff’s response to each item:

Item #1- Bank Reconciliation and Transfers: The June and July 2019 bank reconciliations for the
revenue (operating) account included several general journal entries as uncleared, reconciling items.
Transactions totaling $305.83 dated 7/14/17 and 3/31/18 were listed as outstanding checks and a general
journal entry dated 9/1/17 in the amount of $94.32 was reported as a deposit in transit. Similarly, an EFT
from 2/14/19 for an ICMA-RC payment was reported as an outstanding item in June and July. The
business lounge account reported two deposits in transit dated 4/18/19 and 6/25/19 totaling $105 on the
June and July 2019 bank reconciliations. Deposits should clear the bank within 3 to 5 business days.
During the monthly reconciliation and review process, reconciling items should be reviewed for
reasonableness and uncleared deposits should be researched and resolved in a timely manner.

Several June 2019 bank reconciliations reported reconciling items for transfers that were not made or for
transfers made in error. We also noted that overdraft fees of $72 were charged to the capital bank account
in October 2018 when checks of $15,631.46 and $14,742.45 cleared. We recommend management review
internal control procedures for reviewing cash balances prior to issuing checks. In addition, procedures for
transferring funds between bank accounts should be reviewed to ensure transfers are made when necessary
and that transfers are made between the appropriate accounts.

Item #1 Response: During the conversion from Great Plains to Quickbooks for the accounting system,
there were three months (April 2018-June 2018) where entries were entered into both systems. It was
necessary to enter balances as of March 2018 into Quickbooks in order to run financial statements and
compare the two systems. During this process, there were some entries that were either entered in error



or duplicated later and as a result, there are items on the bank reconciliation as outstanding items. These
items will be examined and removed as necessary.

A new procedure will be implemented whereby the accountant will verify the bank balance and any
outstanding checks prior to issuing checks against the capital fund bank account. This bank account is
strictly for capital projects and funding must be moved from various sources to cover any checks written
Jrom it. This step will ensure the money has been moved as the person that cuts the checks is not the same

person that transfers the money.

Item #2 — Credit Card Usage: Several charges on the credit card statement from August 2018 were
missing receipts or other supporting documentation. In one instance, a signed explanation was submitted.
Also, in some cases, sales tax was charged and paid. In the event receipts are lost, we recommend the
individual who made the charge provide a written statement detailing the expense, including who was
involved, the business purpose, the amount, etc. In addition, to the extent possible, the sales tax exemption
certificate should be provided to vendors to avoid paying unnecessary taxes.

Item #2 Response: Staffis in the process of updating accounting policies and procedures. For misplaced
receipts, purchasers will attempt to search through email verifications or ask vendors directly for copies of
any receipts. If they still cannot locate a receipt, they will be allowed to provide a written statement
detailing the expense which must be approved by their supervisor who verifies it is justified and
reasonable. Other explanations that might be necessary would be who was involved, the purpose of the
meeting (meal expenses), etc.

The policy will address our exemption status and what purchasers must do when placing orders, i.e.,
provide a sales tax exemption certificate to vendors.

Repeat offenders will lose their credit card privileges.

A draft of the minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on December 16, 2019 is provided as
Attachment #4.

PRIOR ACTION: N/A
FUNDING: N/A
FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A
ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 —FY2019 CAFR Governance Letter

Attachment #2 — FY2019 CAFR Management Letter
Attachment #3 to be provided - The FY2019 Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report (CAFR)
Attachment #4 - December 16, 2019 Audit Committee Minutes

PRESENTATION: N/A



ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants

ard

CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Communication with Those Charged with Governance

To the Honorable Members of the
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

We have audited the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority for the year ended June
30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated May 24, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to
you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority are described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
changed accounting policies related to other postemployment benefits by adopting Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements. We noted no transactions entered into by Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were useful lives of capital assets used to
calculate depreciation and pension and OPEB related items.

Management’s estimate of useful lives and related depreciation is based on established guidelines and
experience. Pension and OPEB related items were calculated by an actuary contracted by the State retirement
system. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop depreciation expense and pension and
OPEB related items in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a

whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, there was one misstatement detected as a
result of audit procedures and corrected by management that was material to the financial statements. This
was a reclassification of $268,531 in funds between the PFC state entitlement account and PFC fund account
that were transferred to the wrong bank account in error.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 23, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis and the schedules related to
pension and OPEB funding, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.



Other Matters: (Continued)

We were engaged to report on the schedule of administrative expenses, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, and the schedule of Passenger Facility Charges collected and expended and interest credited, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section or statistical section, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance

on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Authority Board, audit committee, and management of
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Charlottesville, Virginia
December 23, 2019



[m ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES, PLLC
— Certified Public Accountants
CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Date: December 23, 2019

MEMORANDUM TO: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates

REGARDING: FY 18-19 Audit

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority for the year ended June 30, 2019, we considered the Authority’s internal control structure to plan
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the internal control structure.

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and other
operational matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated
December 23, 2019, on the financial statements of Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority. Our
comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of
management, are intended to improve the internal control structure or result in other operating
efficiencies. We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to
perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

Bank Reconciliations and Transfers

The June and July 2019 bank reconciliations for the revenue (operating) account included several general
journal entries as uncleared, reconciling items. Transactions totaling $305.83 dated 7/14/17 and 3/31/18
were listed as outstanding checks and a general journal entry dated 9/1/17 in the amount of $94.32 was
reported as a deposit in transit. Similarly, an EFT from 2/14/19 for an ICMA-RC payment was reported as an
outstanding item in June and July. The business lounge account reported two deposits in transit dated
4/18/19 and 6/25/19 totaling $105 on the June and July 2019 bank reconciliations. Deposits should clear
the bank within 3 to 5 business days. During the monthly reconciliation and review process, reconciling
items should be reviewed for reasonableness and uncleared deposits should be researched and resolved in a

timely manner.

Several June 2019 bank reconciliations reported reconciling items for transfers that were not made or for
transfers made in error. We also noted that in overdraft fees of $72 were charged to the capital bank
account in October 2018 when checks of $15,631.46 and $14,742.45 cleared. We recommend management
review internal control procedures for reviewing cash balances prior to issuing checks. In addition,
procedures for transferring funds between bank accounts should be reviewed to ensure transfers are made
when necessary and that transfers are made between the appropriate accounts.

Credit Card Usage

Several charges on the credit card statement from August 2018 were missing receipts or other supporting
documentation. In one instance, a signed explanation was submitted. Also, in some cases, sales tax was
charged and paid. In the event receipts are lost, we recommend the individual who made the charge
provide a written statement detailing the expense, including who was involved, the business purpose, the
amount, etc. In addition, to the extent possible, the sales tax exemption certificate should be provided to
vendors to avoid paying unnecessary taxes.



DRAFT Minutes of the Audit Committee of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Audit Committee
December 16, 2019
3:30 pm
Flora Petit Conference Room, 530 E. Main St., Charlottesville

Present (in person):

Lisa Breeden, Committee Member

Chris Cullinan, Committee Member and Chair

J. Addison Barnhardt, Committee Member

Craig Lefanowicz, Committee Member

Don Long, Committee Member

Penny Shifflett, Director of Finance, Airport Authority
Kristen Choate, Member, Robinson Farmer Cox Associates

Absent:
None

The meeting began at 3:34 pm.
Agenda ltem #1: Review and approve minutes from June 16, 2019 meeting.

The minutes were amended to add Mrs. Breeden to the list of attendees. Mr. Lefanowicz moved that
the minutes be approved; Mr. Barnhardt seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

Agenda Item #2: FY 2019 Audit.
Mrs. Choate led a review of the audit, Management Letter, and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(CAFR). She began her report noting that the Authority received an unmodified (i.e. clean) audit opinion
for FY 2019. Other highlights she noted included the complete repayment of the $6.7 million Series
2004 Refunding Bond, the Authority’s manageable debt balances, and implementation of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 88 (see Note 15 in the CAFR).

In the letter to those charged with governance, Mrs. Choate noted she encountered no difficulties or
disagreements with management while performing the audit. The Management Letter offered two
comments and recommendation for staff to implement. The first recommendation was in reference to
timely resolution of bank reconciliations. The second recommendation concerned staff use of credit
cards and ensuring receipts and/or supporting documentation was provided in a complete and timely
manner. Also, that the Authority is exempt from Virginia sales tax and that the Authority’s sales tax
exemption certificate should be provided to vendors to avoid paying unnecessary taxes. Staff provided
responses to both recommendations which were agreeable to the Committee.

Mrs. Choate also noted no issues or concerns regarding Federal schedules or Passenger Facility Charges.

Mrs. Shifflett noted several highlights for FY 2019. All revenues finished above budget. Expenditures
were higher than the previous year as a result of a fully staffed public safety department, custodial
services being brought in-house, and the ambassadors programs.

Agenda Item #3: Committee Communications to/from Board or Staff.
Mrs. Shifflett commented that she would check the status of the terms of the members of the Audit

Committee.




Agenda Item #4: Other Business.
None.

Agenda Item #5: Matters by the Public.
Members of the public were invited to comment. No members of the public were present.

Mr. Long made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Lefanowicz seconded the motion. The Committee
voted 5-0 to adjourn the meeting at 4:01 pm.



——-—7

CHO

A I R P O R T
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: January 30, 2020
SUBJECT: Action Item #3- 2020 Audit Committee Membership

RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to appoint the 2020 Audit Committee by approving
Resolution No: 2020-1 “Appointment of the 2020 Membership of the Audit

Committee”

BACKGROUND: On March 21, 2012 (last updated on May 21, 2015 by Resolution 2015-2),
the Authority passed a resolution creating the Audit Committee Charter. Within this charter the Audit
Committee was charged with advising the Authority of financial and accounting matters relating to the
Authority’s audited financial reports. Each year by resolution, the Authority appoints the membership of
the Audit Committee for that year. Resolution No: 2020-1 is attached which outlines the membership of

the 2020 Audit Committee.
PRIOR ACTION: N/A
FUNDING: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 —Resolution No. 2020-1 “Appointment of the 2020
Membership of the Audit Committee”

PRESENTATION: N/A



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-1
ESTABLISHING 2020 MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, by resolution dated March 15, 2017 (“Committee Charter”) the Charlottesville-
Albemarle Airport Authority reauthorized an audit committee previously created by resolution approved
on March 21, 2012, charging the audit committee to advise the governing body of the Authority on
financial and accounting matters of or relating to the Authority’s audited financial reports, consistent with
the responsibilities referenced within said resolution; and

WHEREAS, the membership of the committee is to be constituted on an annual basis by the
Authority’s governing board, consistent with the membership established by the Committee Charter (last
updated on May 21, 2015 by Resolution 2015-2), and the governing board desires to establish the
membership of the committee for calendar year 2020; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 2020 membership of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority Audit Committee shall be as follows:

1. The City of Charlottesville’s Director of Finance, or his or her designee;
2. The Albemarle County Director of Finance, or his or her designee;

3. Addison Barnhardt, a member of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Commission, and who is
hereby appointed to serve on the committee for a term concurrent with his or her term of service on

the Commission; and

4. Craig Lefanowicz, an individual who the board hereby finds to be deeply-skilled in accounting, and
who was appointed to serve on the committee to complete the unexpired term of an individual who
resigned. That term expired on December 31, 2017. Mr. Lefanowicz expressed an interest to
continue serving on the committee, therefore the 1* of his two (2) three (3) year possible terms began
on 1/1/18 and Mr. Lefanowicz may serve on the Audit Committee through December 31, 2023.

5. Don Long, an individual who the board hereby finds to be deeply-skilled in business and/or business
law and who was appointed to serve on the committee for his first three (3) year term on January 1,
2015. That term expired on December 31, 2017 and Mr. Long expressed his desire to stay on for his
second term. Mr. Long may serve on the Audit Committee through December 31, 2020.

ADOPTED this 30™ day of January, 2020.

Vote
Ayes: Noes:

Certified
By:
Melinda Crawford, Secretary




CHO

R P O R 7T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: January 30, 2020

SUBJECT: Action Item #4- Smith Vicars Aviation Agreement Letter

RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to approve Resolution No. 2020-2 “Executive
Director Authorization to Administer the Agreement Letter with
Smith Vicars Aviation for Periodic Tenancy”

BACKGROUND: Smith Vicars Aviation (SVA) (formerly known as Smith-Worrell
Joint Venture and previously known as AMVEST-Worrell Joint Venture) entered into a Deed of
Lease with the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Board, dated September 9, 1983. That lease
was amended three times, and the term of the lease will expire on March 13, 2020, At that time,
the cumulative term of the lease will be 37 years, and as per the terms of the lease, all
improvements will revert back to the Authority. SVA has requested an extension of the term, but
that request cannot be approved due to the Federal Aviation Administration’s restrictions
associated with long-term exclusive leases which are not competitively bid.

Since the Authority is in the process of performing a Terminal Area Masterplan project which
will provide guidance for the future development of the Authority’s complete terminal area
which includes the SVA leased premises, there are no immediate plans for SVA’s ramp or
associated improvements. Staff has worked with legal and SVA to develop an agreement letter
which will allow SVA to remain at the leased premises under certain provisions. Two major
provisions of the agreement letter requires SVA’s rent to increase from $4517.12/month to the
current fair market value of $7,818.39/month, and an extended notification period of 180-days
will be also afforded to SVA when the Authority determines that SVA needs to vacate the

property.

If approved and as noted in the attached Resolution No. 2020-2, the Executive Director will be
designated as the Board’s agent for administration of the agreement letter, including, without
limitation: executing and issuing the agreement letter on behalf of the Authority; giving of
notices and approvals required of the Authority, and exercising and enforcing such other rights
as may be authorized or reserved to the Authority within the lease and agreement letter.

PRIOR ACTION: September 1983 — Original lease with AMVEST-Worrell Joint
Venture

FUNDING: N/A



FINANCIAL IMPACT: Beginning March 14, 2020, the rent will increase from $4,517.12
per month to $7,818.39 per month. This monthly rental rate will increase by 1.5% on November
1% of each year of the tenancy, unless both parties have agreed otherwise in writing.

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 — Smith Vicars Agreement Letter
Attachment #2 — Resolution No. 2020-2 “Executive Director
Authorization to Administer the Agreement Letter with Smith
Vicars Aviation for Periodic Tenancy”

PRESENTATION: N/A



DATE:
Dear Mr. Huffman,

This letter serves to memorialize the understanding that we reached regarding the future
relationship between Smith Vicars Aviation (“SVA”) and the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority (“CHO”). The lease agreement between SVA and CHO will expire according to its
own terms on March 13, 2020. I have attached all of the documents associated with that lease,
including all deeds of amendment, to this letter.

SVA may remain on the property beyond March 13, 2020, however, as a periodic tenant on a
month-to-month basis. To the extent practicable, the terms and conditions contained in the
expired lease will remain in effect, with the following modifications:

e SVA will pay $7,818.39 per month in rent. The monthly rental will increase by 1.5% on
November 1 of each year of the tenancy, unless the parties have agreed otherwise in
writing.

e SVA may continue to purchase fuel and will remit fuel flowage fees in the appropriate
amount to CHO.

e SVA will continue to assume all responsibilities associated with a triple net commercial
lease agreement, including payment for repairs, maintenance, utilities, and insurance.
CHO will assume responsibility for the payment of all property taxes, however.

e SVA may continue to sublease the property, with the understanding that any interest of
sub-lessee in the property will terminate along with SVA’s tenancy.

e SVA may discontinue its tenancy by providing written notice to CHO at least 90 days in
advance of its intention to vacate the property. CHO may terminate SVA’s tenancy by
providing written notice to SVA at least 180 days in advance of its intention to re-occupy
the property.

Sincerely,

Melinda Crawford
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority



SEEN AND AGREED TO:

Smith Vicars Aviation

By: Randolph H. Huffman

Senior Vice President-Chief Financial Officer
Smith, Vicars & Company

It’s Managing Partner



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-2
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATION TO ADMINISTER THE AGREEMENT LETTER WITH
SMITH VICARS AVIATION FOR PERIODIC TENANCY

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority (Authority) is an independent political
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, located in the County of Albemarle, Virginia, and is the
successor in interest to the former Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Board;

WHEREAS, Smith Vicars Aviation (SVA) (formerly known as Smith-Worrell Joint Venture and
previously known as AMVEST-Worrell Joint Venture ) entered into a Deed of Lease with the
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Board, dated September 9, 1983, of record in the land records for the
County of Albemarle, Virginia, in Deed Book 852, page 501 (hereinafter, the “Lease™);

WHEREAS, the Lease was (a) amended by First Deed of Amendment dated July 15, 1999, of record
in the land records for the County of Albemarle, Virginia, in Deed Book 1847, page 674, (b) amended by
Second Deed of Amendment dated November 3, 2002, of record in the land records for the County of
Albemarle, Virginia, in Deed Book 2344, page 245, (c) clarified by letter of agreement dated December 16,
2011 and (d) entered into the Third Deed of Amendment on March 14, 2015 providing a five year extension

to the Lease; and

WHEREAS, the term of the Lease will expire on March 13, 2020 at which time the cumulative term
of the Lease will have been thirty-seven years, and all improvements will revert back to the Authority as per
the Lease terms. An additional extension of the term of the Lease to SVA is not an option due to Federal
Aviation Administration’s restrictions associated with long-term leases which are not competitively bid; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of extending its air carrier ramp to within feet of the SVA
leased ramp area, and the Authority has also entered into a contract with a firm to perform a Terminal Area
Masterplan which will provide guidance for the future development of the Authority’s terminal area which
includes the SVA leased premises; and

WHEREAS, SVA wishes to continue leasing the premises, and the Authority is agreeable until the
Terminal Area Masterplan is completed which will provide guidance on the future use of the premises.
However, a standard hold-over tenancy is not feasible due to the need to provide SVA with a longer
notification period when the Authority determines SVA needs to vacate the property; and,

WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and in the Lease
and its prior amendments, an “Agreement Letter For Periodic Tenancy” with SVA which outlines the terms
of SVA’s month-to-month occupancy of the premises beginning on March 14, 2020 is provided; and

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing Board of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
that the Executive Director is hereby designated as the Board’s agent for administration of said agreement
letter, including, without limitation: executing and issuing the agreement letter on behalf of the Authority;
giving of notices and approvals required of the Authority, and exercising and enforcing such other rights
as may be authorized or reserved to the Authority within the Lease and agreement letter.

ADOPTED this 30® day of January 2020.
Vote:
Aye: No:

Certified:
By:

Melinda Crawford, Secretary



CHO

P O R T

TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director

DATE: January 30, 2020

SUBJECT: Action Item #5- Transportation Network Company Agreements

RECOMMENDATION: For the Board to approve Resolution No. 2020-3 “Executive
Director Authorization to Administer the Transportation Network
Company Agreements with Uber and Lyft”

BACKGROUND: As per Virginia Code Section 46.2-2099.48.L, “No transportation
network company or TNC partner shall conduct any operation on the property of or into any
airport unless such operations is authorized by the airport owner and operator and is in
compliance with the rules and regulations of that airport.” In December of 2018, the Board
amended its Rules and Regulations and Section 9.03 was expanded to allow for the regulation of
TNCs operating on Airport properties. At that time, the Board was provided with the results of
an extensive survey of TNC fees charged at various airports across the country. After careful
review, a detailed discussion about how much of this Airport’s staff’s time is (and will be)
allocated to control of TNC operations at CHO, and much deliberation; the Board approved
staff’s recommendation for a $2 pick-up and $2 drop-off for all TNCs operating at the Airport.

Staff developed a Transportation Network Company Agreement which was reviewed and
approved by legal. This agreement has been submitted to both Uber and Lyft. Staff has also
completed the installation of a “TNC Stand Area” south of the terminal at curbside. As noted in
the agreement, TNC drivers will be required to pick-up passengers at that area, and the drivers
will be dropping passengers off at the curbside near the departures/ticket counter entrance to the

terminal.

If approved and as noted in the attached Resolution No. 2020-3, the Executive Director will be
designated as the Board’s agent for administration of the TNC Agreements, including, without
limitation: executing the agreements on behalf of the Authority; giving of notices and approvals
required of the Authority, and exercising and enforcing such other rights as may be authorized or
reserved to the Authority within the agreement.

PRIOR ACTION: December 2018 — Board amended the Authority’s Rules and
Regulations to allow for TNC operations and approved pick-up and drop-off fees.

FUNDING: N/A



FINANCIAL IMPACT:  While the actual number of monthly TNC pick-ups and drop-offs

have not been determined, staff believes that the activity is averaging about 5-10 pick-ups and

drop-offs per flight. If that estimate is correct, then fees received could be estimated as follows:
5 passengers x (26 departures per day + 26 arrivals per day) x $2 = $520 per day
$520 x 365 days = $189,800 per year

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment #1 — Transportation Network Company Agreement
Attachment #2 — Resolution No. 2020-3 “Executive Director
Authorization to Administer the TNC Agreements with Uber and

Lyﬂ”

PRESENTATION: N/A



NON-EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK
COMPANY SERVICES AT CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE AIRPORT

THIS NON-EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE TRANSPORTATION
NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES AT CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE AIRPORT (together with
the Exhibits attached hereto, this “Permit”), is made and entered into as of this____ day of February, 2020, by
and between the CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE AIRPORT AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of
the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”), and the following Transportation Network Company”

,a with a place of business at
FEIN and authorized to operate in the
Commonwealth of Virginia to do business. Upon execution of this Agreement by both the Authority and the
transportation network company, and for so long as the Agreement remains in effect, the transportation
network company shall be deemed to be operating at the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport pursuant to a
permit granted by the Authority. Hereinafier, the transportation network company shall be referred to as the
“Permittee.”

Capitalized terms used herein which are not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning given
them in the Terms and Conditions, attached hereto as Exhibit A. This Permit is made with reference and

subject to the following facts:

A. The Authority is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia and is the owner
and operator of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport (the “Airport™).

B. The Authority is charged with and responsible for regulating the provision of ground
transportation services at the Airport.

C. Permittee is a Transportation Network Company (“TNC”) authorized to operate by and
within the Commonwealth of Virginia.

D. Permittee desires to derive financial benefit by authorizing affiliated TNC Drivers to operate
one or more TNC Vehicles for the purpose of transporting Passengers to and from the
Airport.

E. Permittee has requested Authority to authorize certain authorized TNC Vehicles and TNC

Drivers to conduct operations at the Airport for the purpose of picking-up and dropping-off
Passengers, and to use certain roadways, parking areas and curb space at the Airport for such

purpose.

F. Permittee, in consideration of the Authority granting Permittee authorization to enable its
TNC Drivers to operate TNC Vehicles at the Airport and to use Airport roadways, parking
areas and curb space at the Airport for such purpose, agrees to conduct its services at the
Airport in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.

G. The Authority desires to grant Permittee the non-exclusive right to operate authorized TNC
Vehicles at the Airport for the purpose of dropping-off, picking-up and transporting

Passengers in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1. SERVICES.
1.1 Grant of Permit. By issuance of this Permit, the Authority hereby grants Permittee the non-

exclusive right, in common with others so authorized, to operate at the Airport for the purpose of dropping-

1



off, picking-up and transporting Passengers to and from the Airport in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Permit.

1.2 No Representations or Warranties. The Permittee hereby acknowledges and agrees that the
Authority does not make, and has not made, any representation, warranty, assurance, or guaranty that this
Permit, or the operations conducted hereunder, will generate any minimum, maximum, or optimum volume of
airline or other passenger traffic business, or that any minimum, maximum, or optimum volume of airline or
other passenger traffic business or revenue will occur.

SECTION 2. PAYMENT.

2.1 Fees and Charges. In consideration of the limited rights granted by the Authority pursuant
to this Permit, Permittee hereby agrees to pay to the Authority during the term of this Permit a per trip fee of
Two Dollars ($2.00) for each Trip (defined below) conducted by a TNC Driver in a TNC Vehicle at the
Airport (the “Per Trip Fee”). The term “Trip” means each and every instance in which a TNC Vehicle drops-

off or picks-up a Passenger at the Airport.

2.2 Monthly Payment of Per Trip Fees. All Per Trip Fees payable hereunder shall be paid
monthly by Permittee to the Authority. The Monthly Payment (defined below) is due in full within thirty (30)
calendar days of the close of any calendar month while this Permit is in effect. Payments shall be made to
Authority in legal tender of the United States, free from all claims, demands, setoffs, or counterclaims of any
kind, and should be delivered to the Authority at the following address:

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Department of Finance

100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200

Charlottesville, VA 22911

The term “Monthly Payment” means the product of (a) the number of Trips conducted by Permittee’s
TNC Vehicles in one calendar month, and (b) the Per Trip Fee then in effect. The Monthly Payment shall be
accompanied by a full reporting of the Permittee’s operations at the Airport for the payment period, in
accordance with Section 2.6 below.

2.3 Late Payments. Monthly Payments not received by the Authority within thirty (30)
calendar days following the close of any calendar month will be subject to a late fee in the amount of two

percent (2%) of the Monthly Payment.

2.4 Under Payments. Should any examination, inspection or audit of Permittee’s books and
records by the Authority disclose an underpayment by Permittee of the Monthly Payment due the Authority,
Permittee shall promptly pay the Authority the amount of such undisputed underpayment within five (5) days
after notice thereof.

2.5 Airport Geo-Fence Downtime. In the event of a failure (a “Downtime™) of the TNC Vehicle
tracking mechanism enabled by the Airport Geo-Fence, the Authority shall determine the amount of the
Permittee’s Monthly Payment for such Downtime based upon the average monthly number of Trips made in
the last twelve (12) months for the same amount of time, taking into account time of day and day of week. If
the permit has not been in place for a twelve (12) month period, then an average number of Trips for the
period of time the permit has been in place will be used taking into account time of day and day of week.

2.6 Monthly Reports. Within thirty (30) days of the close of any calendar month while this
Permit is in effect, Permittee shall submit to the Authority, along with the Permittee’s Monthly Payment, its
operations report for the previous calendar month (the “Monthly Report™). The Monthly Report shall be in an
agreed-upon electronic format and shall include for each date of operation and for each Trip the following
information: (a) the first three digits of the license plate number of the TNC Vehicle, (b) the time of drop-off

2



or pick-up by the TNC Vehicle, and (c) the location of each drop-off or pick-up. The Monthly Report shall
also include the total number of Trips for the reporting period. If the Authority is unable to match the license
plate number of a TNC Vehicle that was on a Trip with the first three digits of the license plate numbers
contained in a Monthly Report submitted by Permittee, the Authority may request that Permittee supplement
its Monthly Report with the full license plate numbers for any Trips or TNC Vehicles in question. Upon
receipt of such request, the Permittee shall submit a supplemental Monthly Report to the Authority containing
the full license plate numbers for any Trips or TNC Vehicles in question within five (5) business days.

SECTION 3. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF PERMIT.

3.1 Suspension or Termination by the Authority. Authority has the right to terminate this Permit
is terminable at any time in the sole and absolute discretion of the Authority by giving at least ninety (90)
days’ prior written notice of termination to Permittee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Authority may also
suspend or terminate this Permit upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in Section 17 of the
Terms and Conditions, attached hereto as Exhibit A). Should this Permit be suspended by the Authority, and
thereafter Permittee continues to instruct any of its TNC Drivers to engage in providing TNC Services at the
Airport, and any such TNC Driver is found to have been operating at the Airport during the period of
suspension, the Authority shall have the right to terminate this Permit immediately and without prior notice to
the Permittee.

3.2 Termination by Permittee. Permittee may terminate this Permit by giving at least sixty (60)
days’ prior written notice to the Authority. The Permittee is responsible for payment to the Authority of all
Per Trip Fees up to and including the date of such termination by the Permittee.

SECTION 4. COMMENCEMENT DATE: TERM.

4.1 Commencement Date. This Permit shall be effective, and the “Commencement Date” shall
be deemed to occur, on the date in which all of the following conditions precedent have been satisfied, in the
Authority’s sole and absolute discretion:

(a) The Authority has received all necessary and sufficient insurance certificates or
documents, in a form acceptable to the Authority, evidencing that Permittee has
obtained the necessary insurance required by this Permit;

b) The Permittee has made available to each TNC Driver the relevant portions of this
Permit that are applicable to TNC Drivers, and Permittee has instructed each TNC
Driver regarding the terms and conditions of this Permit, including without
limitation, the requirement that each TNC Driver shall comply with the terms and
conditions of this Permit and the Rules and Regulations of the Authority;

(c) The Authority has received one (1) original copy of this Agreement, fully completed
and executed by Permittee;

(d) The Authority has executed this Agreement, by its Executive Director of the
Authority;

(e) The Permittee has submitted to the Authority Permittee’s designated Trade Dress for
TNC Vehicles operating on its TNC Application;

® The Permittee has obtained all permits, business licenses, and any other licenses or
authorizations required by any federal, state or local governmental entity, authority,
agency or department, and Permittee has provided a copy of same to the Authority;
and



(2) The Permittee has established and verified the Airport Geo-Fence in accordance with
the requirements of this Permit.

4.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Commencement Date and shall expire
at 11:59 p.m. on , 2021.
43 Renewal of Permit. This Permit may be renewed for additional periods of one (1) year each

in the sole and absolute discretion of the Authority. In no event shall a Permit be renewed unless and until all
fees (including the Monthly Payment) owed to the Authority by the Permittee have been paid in full. Upon
renewal of this Permit, the Authority has the right to adjust the foregoing fees as mutually agreeable by the
Authority and Permittee.

4.4 Modifications to Permit. The Authority will continuously evaluate the operations of
Permittee at the Airport pursuant to this Permit. The Authority reserves the right to modify or amend the
Permit, or any section thereof, in its sole and absolute discretion, with thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to
Permittee, prior to any modification taking effect.

SECTION 5. USE, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS.

5.1 Limited Grant. The limited rights granted by this Permit do not establish or vest in
Permittee any right to preferential use of Airport facilities. Permittee acknowledges and agrees that Permittee
has no exclusive right to conduct its operations at the Airport, and the Authority, in its sole and absolute
discretion, may arrange for or allow other TNCs to conduct similar operations at the Airport on the same
terms and conditions as set forth herein.

5.2 Designated Drop-Off and Pick-Up Areas.

(a) Permittee shall be responsible for informing TNC Drivers operating under this
Permit about the Designated Areas (defined below) approved by the Authority
where TNC Drivers may (i) wait for requests for transportation, or (ii) drop-off or
pick-up Passengers. Permittee is responsible for ensuring that all TNC Drivers
comply with the provisions of this Permit and all other applicable Rules and
Regulations of the Authority, including but not limited to, use of the Designated
Areas; provided however, that violations by a TNC Driver shall be exclusively
governed by Section 27 of Exhibit A.

(b) The term “Designated Areas™ includes only those certain areas selected by the
Authority where TNC Drivers may only (i) wait for requests for transportation by
Passengers at the “TNC Holding Area” location, as set forth on Exhibit B , or (ii)
pick-up Passengers who have requested transportation through the TNC’s mobile
application at the “TNC Stand Area” location, as also set forth on Exhibit B.
Passengers will be dropped off at the Terminal’s curb-side near the
Departure/Airline Ticketing entrance.

(© Should utilization of the Designated Areas by TNC Drivers create any security or
operational issues in the sole opinion of the Authority, the Authority reserves the
right to limit the number of TNC Vehicles accessing the Designated Areas,
including without limitation, by limiting the maximum number of TNC Vehicles in
the TNC Holding Area to the number of parking spaces in the Holding Area.
Furthermore, the Authority reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
alter or change the Designated Areas from time to time, only after Authority
provides Permittee advance written notice of the change such that Permittee has

4



reasonable time to change operations as necessary and inform TNC Drivers. In the
event of an alteration or change to the Designated Areas, the Permittee is
responsible for notifying each TNC Driver operating under this Permit of such
alteration or change, and if requested, the Permittee shall provide the Authority with

a copy of such notification.

d All TNC Vehicles not actively loading or unloading Passengers in the TNC Stand
Area shall be parked in the TNC Holding Area while awaiting a request from a
Passenger for pick-up. No TNC Vehicle shall stage, wait or park in any other areas
of the Airport other than the TNC Holding Area. No TNC Vehicle shall loop in
excess around the terminal area or around any part of the Airport property while
waiting for a pick-up. All TNC Drivers shall have a pre-arranged match prior to
entering the TNC Stand Area for the purpose of dropping-off or picking-up a
Passenger. Use of the TSA Stand Area shall be limited to a maximum of five (5)
minutes at any given time. All TNC Drivers must remain with their vehicles while
parked in any of the Designated Areas. TNC Drivers who operate in areas outside
the Designated Areas or the Airport roadways necessary to access the Designated
Areas, or who leave their TNC Vehicle unattended in any Designated Area, shall be
subject to discipline, up to and including suspension or termination of their
privileges at the Airport.

(e) Permittee hereby accepts the Designated Areas in their present condition and “AS
IS,” without representation or warranty of any kind, and subject to all applicable
laws. The Authority shall have no obligation to alter, renovate, or otherwise change
the Designated Areas. The Authority shall have no obligation to provide utility
services, wireless internet access, or any other services to the Designated Areas.

5.3 Solicitation and Curbside “Hails” Prohibited. This Permit authorizes Permittee and TNC
Drivers operating under this Permit to operate on the Airport for prearranged drop-offs and pick-ups only.
Solicitation and curbside “hails” are not authorized or allowed by this Permit, and will be considered a
violation of this Permit.

54 Tracking TNC Vehicles on Airport Roadways. The Authority reserves the right to utilize an
alternative TNC Vehicle tracking mechanism or other similar protocol to be provided by a third party (the
“Tracking Provider”) (for example, the American Association of Airport Executives’ App-Based
Transportation Clearinghouse) to allow the Authority the ability to, among other things, track all TNC
Vehicles operating at the Airport under this Permit and to reconcile and audit the Monthly Reports provided
by Permittee. In such event, the Permittce agrees that it will reasonably cooperate and work with the
Authority in good faith and will provide to the Authority and the Tracking Provider the required data and
information necessary for the Authority to utilize the alternative TNC Vehicle tracking mechanism.

5.5 Use of TNC Application. The TNC Application shall be open and activated at all times
while the TNC Driver is operating on Airport property.

5.6 Digital Decal. Permittee shall ensure that each TNC Driver will maintain, on his or her
smartphone, a “digital decal” while using the TNC Application that will be used in lieu of a tangible Airport
transponder. The digital decal will allow the Authority to confirm the following information for any TNC
Driver or TNC Vehicle using the TNC Application while on Airport grounds at all times: (i) the name or logo
of the Permittee; (ii) the name and a photograph of the TNC Driver; (iii) the make, model and license plate
number of each TNC Vehicle associated with the TNC Driver, and the state issuing each such license plate;
and (iv) all certificates of insurance required by this Permit or applicable law.

5.7 Waybills. All Passenger drop-offs and pick-ups at the Airport shall be documented by a
waybill, which shall state the Passenger’s name, the location of the drop-off or pick-up, and the time the drop-

5



off or pick-up was scheduled. For Passenger drop-offs at the Airport, the waybill shall be prepared prior to
entering Airport property. For Passenger pick-ups at the Airport, the waybill shall be prepared prior to exiting
the Holding Area.

5.8 Airport Exit. After dropping-off Passenger at Terminal curbside or picking-up a Passenger
in the TNC Stand Area, the TNC Driver must immediately exit the Airport or proceed to the TNC Hold Area.

5.9 Requests for Information. Upon request from Authority-Related Personnel for any
information necessary to show a driver’s compliance with this Permit (and in compliance with the non-
discriminatory policies required by both parties under this Agreement), all TNC Drivers shall immediately
comply with such request and provide such requested information, including but not limited to, proof of all
required insurance, license and registration, prearranged waybill, digital decal, or confirmation that the TNC
Application is activated while on Airport property.

5.10 Reports. The Permittee shall provide to the Authority, upon request by the Authority, records
and other information necessary to investigate and resolve a complaint or respond to an incident as set forth in

Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.53(B).
SECTION 6. TNC VEHICLES.

6.1 TNC Vehicle Requirements. Permittee shall ensure that each TNC Vehicle conforms to and
complies with all vehicle requirements set forth in Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.50.

6.2 Trade Dress. Prior to operating at the Airport, Permittee shall provide the Authority with a
photograph of Permittee’s proposed Trade Dress, along with a description of the designated Trade Dress
location, which location must be approved by the Authority and in accordance with the Code of Virginia.
While operating at the Airport pursuant to this Permit, whether or not carrying a Passenger, every TNC
Vehicle shall display Permittee’s approved Trade Dress in the approved Trade Dress location.

6.3 TNC Vehicle Condition. Permittee shall ensure all TNC Vehicles are maintained in good
and safe mechanical condition, clean and free of visible damage, and in full compliance with this Permit, all
Rules and Regulations of the Authority, and the Code of Virginia. A violation of this Section shall be
addressed in accordance with Section 27 of Exhibit A.

SECTION 7. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES.

7.1 General Prohibited Activities. Without limiting any other provision herein, Permittee shall
not, without the Authority’s prior written consent:

(a) Cause or permit anything to be done, in or about the Designated Areas or the
Airport, or bring or keep anything thereon, which would be reasonably likely to (i) increase, in any way, the
rate of fire insurance on the Airport, (ii) create a nuisance, or (iii) obstruct or interfere with the right of others
at the Airport or injure or annoy them;

(b) Use, or allow the Designated Areas to be used, for any improper, immoral, unlawful
or reasonably objectionable purpose;

(©) Place any loads upon the floor, walls or ceiling which endanger the structure or
obstruct the sidewalk, passageways, stairways or escalators, in front of, within or adjacent to the Designated
Areas or the roadways; or

(d Do, or permit to be done, anything, in any way, which would be reasonably likely to
materially injure the reputation or image of the Authority or appearance of the Airport or violate the

6



Authority’s Rules and Regulations.

7.2 Other Prohibited Activities. Without limiting the generality of other provisions of this

Permit, the following activities are specifically prohibited by Permittee and TNC Drivers operating under this
Permit, as applicable, while on Airport property:

(2)
(b)
(©)
(d)

(e)
®

(2
(h)

®
)
(k)

)

(m)

()

(0)

@)
@

@)

Turning off or disabling the TNC Application when a TNC Vehicle is at the Airport;
Allowing the operation of a TNC Vehicle at the Airport by an unauthorized driver;
Transporting a Passenger in an unauthorized vehicle;

Picking-up or dropping-off Passengers or their baggage at any location other than
the Designated Areas;

Leaving a TNC Vehicle unattended;

Failing to maintain the TNC Vehicle interior and exterior in an appropriately clean
condition;

Littering at the Airport or in the Designated Areas;

Failing to provide information or providing false information to the Authority or
Authority-Related Personnel upon request as set forth in Section 5 of this Permit;

Operating a TNC Vehicle on Airport property without the approved Trade Dress;
Soliciting Passengers at the Airport;

Re-circulating anywhere at the Airport, except directly en-route to the Holding
Area;

Using or possessing any alcoholic beverage, narcotic, or controlled substance
(unless pursuant to a valid prescription) while on Airport property or while carrying
a Passenger;

Failing to operate a TNC Vehicle in a safe manner as required by the
Commonwealth of Virginia Motor Vehicle Code, local laws, and the Authority’s

Rules and Regulations;
Failing to comply with posted speed limits and traffic control signs;

Using profane or vulgar language in the presence of any member of the public or
Authority-Related Personnel;

Any soliciting or advertising whatsoever;

Soliciting of any activiiy prohibited by law, this Permit, or the Authority’s Rules
and Regulations;

Operating a TNC Vehicle which is not in a safe mechanical condition or which lacks
mandatory safety equipment as required by the Commonwealth of Virginia Motor
Vehicle Code;



)

®
W

)
(W)

£9)]

Operating a TNC Vehicle without the required certification or at any time during
which the Virginia certification or this Permit is suspended or revoked,;

Engaging in any criminal activity;

Failing to comply with instructions or directions given by the Authority or
Authority-Related Personnel, including but not limited to, failing to comply with the
information-sharing and reporting requirements of Sections 5.9 and 5.10 of this
Permit.

Soliciting or attempting to solicit payment in excess of that authorized by law;
Failing to maintain a neat and clean personal appearance;

Waiting for a Passenger match while in any areas of the Airport property (including
but not limited to, Airport parking lots, garages or roadways), other than in the TNC
Holding Area, as set forth on Exhibit B. Notwithstanding anything in this Permit
to the contrary, TNC Drivers are prohibited from scheduling Passenger pick-
ups while in any areas of the Airport property except for the TNC Holding
Area; or

Any attempt to bypass the TNC Application and solicit cash payment for Passenger
drop-offs or pick-ups.

7.3 Violations of Prohibited Activities. Violations by Permittee or a TNC Driver which are not

addressed by Permittee or the TNC Driver, as applicable, within a reasonable time after a request by the
Authority to do so, may result in suspension or termination of this Permit.

SECTION 8. NOTICES.

8.1 Notices. All notices from one party to the other under this Permit shall be in writing, mailed
by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address indicated below. Either party may
change its address for notice upon written notice to the other in accordance with this Section.

If to the Authority: Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

If to Permittee:

Attn: Executive Director
100 Bowen Loop, Suite 200
Charlottesville, VA 22911

SECTION 9. TERMS & CONDITIONS.

9.1 Incorporation of Exhibits. The Terms and Conditions set forth on Exhibit A, and the

Designated Areas as set forth on Exhibit B are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and made a part

hereof.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Permit as of the day and year set

forth below.

Date Signed:

ATTEST:

Name:

Title:

Date Signed:

ATTEST:

Name:

Title:

PERMITTEE:

a Delaware limited liability company
Virginia SCC Registration No.:

By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:

AUTHORITY:

CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE ATIRPORT

AUTHORITY
a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia

By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following Terms and Conditions (the “Terms and Conditions™) are attached to and made a part of
the Non-Exclusive Operating Agreement to Provide Transportation Network Company Services at
Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION.

A. Definitions.  The following terms, when used in this Permit shall, unless the context
requires otherwise, have the respective meanings given below:

1.

Airport: shall mean the land and premises located in Albemarle County,
Commonwealth of Virginia, and lands contiguous thereto, which may be acquired
from time to time by the Authority for Airport purposes, and which shall comprise
the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport. The term “Airport” shall also include the
General Aviation Facility.

Airport Geo-Fence: an electronic perimeter of the Airport comprised of one or more
polygons whose points are geographic coordinates as defined and verified by the
Authority and under the Permittee’s management. TNC Vehicles located within this
Airport Geo-Fence area shall not receive or accept requests by Passengers for
transportation except while located within the TNC Holding Area. The Permittee
shall keep records of each and every Trip that begins or ends within the Airport
Geo-Fence, including: a) each and every Passenger drop-off on Airport property,
and b) each and every Passenger pick-up on Airport property.

Authority: shall mean the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority, owner and
operator of the Airport.

Authority-Related Personnel: shall mean the Authority’s Board, officers, officials,
employees, agents, and representatives, including without limitation, the officers of
the Public Safety Department and other authorized law-enforcement personnel.

Designated Areas: shall mean those certain areas selected by the Authority where
TNC Drivers may (i) wait for requests for transportation by Passengers, as set forth
on Exhibit B, or (ii) drop-off or pick-up Passengers, as also set forth on Exhibit B.

Governmental Body: shall mean any federal, state, city or other political subdivision
thereof, or any other entity, authority, agency or department exercising the
executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative powers or
functions pertaining to government.

Passenger: any individual who hires or enters a TNC Vehicle operated by a TNC
Driver providing TNC Services to or from the Airport pursuant to this Permit.

Permit: shall mean the Non-Exclusive Operating Agreement to Provide
Transportation Network Company Services at Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport,
authorizing Permittee to provide TNC Services at the Airport, together with all
Exhibits attached thereto.

Rules and Regulations: all applicable provisions of the Rules and Regulations of
Authority, and any new, modified or additional rules and regulations, which the

10




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Authority now or hereafter enacts, and as may be amended from time to time. The
term “Rules and Regulations” also includes all rules and regulations of any
Governmental Body, including but not limited to, the Federal Aviation
Administration (“FAA”) and the Transportation Security Administration (“TSA”).

TNC: shall mean a Transportation Network Company, which is an organization,
whether a corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, or other form, operating under
and in compliance with the Code of Virginia, that uses a TNC Application to
connect Passengers with TNC Drivers using their personal vehicles to provide
transportation to Passengers.

TNC Application: the mobile smartphone application or platform developed by
Permittee that connects Passengers with TNC Drivers and TNC Vehicles. If
requested by the Authority, Permittee will detail to the Authority the functionality of
the TNC Application in order to assist the Authority in enforcing the Permit,
including but not limited to, by demonstrating how the TNC Application is
consistent with the Authority’s Rules and Regulations and the Terms and Conditions
of this Permit.

TNC Driver: an individual approved by the Permittee to use a TNC Vehicle to
transport Passengers whose rides are arranged through the TNC Application. Each
TNC Driver shall be properly authorized and credentialed by the TNC and be
authorized pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Permit to pick-up and drop-
off Passengers at the Airport as an authorized TNC Driver of Permittee. For
purposes of this Agreement, the term “TNC Driver” applies at all times that a TNC
Driver is on Airport property by reason of the driver’s relationship with the
Permittee, regardless of whether the TNC Vehicle is carrying a Passenger.

TNC Services: shall include the Permittee’s authorized operations under this Permit
occurring whenever a TNC Driver is in a TNC Vehicle at the Airport or in the
Designated Areas, and having: a) the TNC Application open and waiting for a match
with a Passenger; b) a match accepted but not having picked up a Passenger; or ¢) a
Passenger in the TNC Vehicle until the Passenger exits the TNC Vehicle. In all of
these instances, the TNC Application shall be open when the TNC Vehicle enters
Airport property and shall remain on throughout the referenced periods.

TNC Vehicle: a vehicle driven by a TNC Driver that is authorized both by the
Permittee and pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Permit to pick-up and
drop-off Passengers at the Airport.

Trade Dress: a removable and distinct logo, insignia, or emblem that is attached to
or visible from the exterior of a TNC Vehicle during the performance of providing
TNC Services and that complies with the Code of Virginia. A copy of the Trade
Dress shall be provided to and approved by the Authority prior to Permittee
commencing operations at the Airport.

B. Construction of Certain Terms. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein or unless the
context otherwise requires, the following rules of construction shall apply:

1.

The use of the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender is for convenience only and
shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words of the masculine,
feminine, or neuter gender, as appropriate.

11



2. The terms defined in this Permit shall have the meanings assigned to them herein
and include the plural as well as the singular.

C. Titles and Headings. The titles and headings of the sections are solely for convenience of
reference, and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning, construction, or effect of any of its provisions.

D. Interpretation. The language of this Permit shall be construed according to its fair meaning,
and not strictly for or against either the Authority or Permittee. If any provision of this Permit is determined to
be void by any court or competent jurisdiction, then such determination shall not affect any other provision of
this Permit and all such other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

E. Applicable Law. This Permit shall be construed according to the laws of the Commonwealth
of Virginia.

SECTION 2. OBLIGATIONS OF PERMITTEE.
Permittee warrants and agrees that it will:

A. Conduct its operation hereunder in compliance with the highest standards of providing TNC
Services and will furnish all necessary fixtures, equipment, supplies, materials, facilities, and personnel
(including licensed personnel as necessary) in order to adequately provide such TNC Services in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Permit.

B. Furnish the TNC Services promptly, efficiently and adequately to meet all reasonable
demands therefore on a fair, equal and non-discriminatory basis.

C. Be responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses and certificates required by any regulatory
agency to conduct the TNC Services provided hereunder.

D. Conduct its operations in an orderly and proper manner so as not to unreasonably annoy,
disturb or be offensive to others on or near the Airport. Permittee shall take all reasonable measures to (i)
eliminate vibrations tending to damage any equipment, structures, buildings or portions of buildings on the
Airport or adjacent to the Airport; and (ii) keep the sound level of its operations as low as reasonably possible,
particularly during the hours of darkness.

E. Not allow any TNC Drivers or TNC Vehicles operating under this Permit to negatively
impact or impede traffic flow in or out of Airport roadways and parking facilities, or to congregate on Airport
access roadways. In the event that the Authority receives complaints from a nearby business or other
establishment that TNC Drivers affiliated with Permittee are congregating at or near the establishment in a
way that is causing harm or likely to cause harm to such establishment, Permittee shall work in good faith

with the Authority to address such concerns.

F. Not allow TNC Vehicles to (i) stage, wait or park in any areas of the Airport other than in
the TNC Holding Area, as set forth on Exhibit B, (ii) pick-up Passengers in any areas of the Airport other than
in the TNC Stand Area or drop-off Passengers in any Airport area other than the front of the Terminal near
the Departure/Ticketing entrance area, as also set forth on Exhibit B, nor (iii) allow any TNC Vehicle to circle
in excess, drive, or loop around the Airport roadways while waiting for a Passenger pick-up, except directly
en-route to the TNC Holding Area.

G. Not divert or cause to be diverted any business provided by tenants and non- transportation
concessionaires on the Airport.

H. Upon receipt of any complaint or objection to the conduct, demeanor or appearance of a TNC

12



Driver operating under this Permit, or Permittee’s employees, invitees or those doing business with the
Permittee, the Permittee shall immediately take all reasonable steps necessary to remove or correct the cause
of the complaint or objection. Permittee and TNC Drivers shall advise Passengers of the means and methods
for contacting, reporting and resolving Passenger complaints.

L. Ensure that at all times all TNC Drivers conduct themselves in a professional manner and
are courteous to the public, Passengers, other ground transportation providers, and Authority-Related
Personnel. Threats of physical harm, fighting, gambling, possession of an unlicensed firearm or use of any
weapons, public intoxication or the use or possession of illegal substances at the Airport are expressly
prohibited.

J. Be responsible for the proper storage and removal from the Airport of all garbage, debris
and other waste materials, either solid or liquid, arising out of its operation hereunder, and shall not use any
facilities of the Authority for such purpose without the prior written consent of the Authority. No such
garbage, debris or other waste materials shall be thrown, discharged or deposited, or permitted to be thrown,
discharged or deposited upon Airport property. Permittee shall not cause or permit to occur upon any portion
of the Airport any illegal waste, public or private nuisance, or other act or thing which disturbs the quiet
enjoyment of any other tenant, licensee, invitee, or person using or occupying any portion of the Airport.

K. Not do or permit to be done anything which may interfere with free access and passage on
and to the Airport.

L. Advise Passengers of the means and methods for contacting, reporting and retrieving lost
property.

M. Not sanction or allow any individual who is not a TNC Driver and who is not driving a

TNC Vehicle to pick-up or drop-off Passengers at the Airport. Permittee must take action against a TNC
Driver who allows an unauthorized individual to use a TNC Vehicle under the account of the TNC Driver to

provide TNC Services at the Airport.

N. Maintain, in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, throughout the term
of the Permit and for three (3) years thereafter, records and books of account, recording all Trips at the
Airport. No more than annually, the Authority may inspect at a mutually agreed location records from
Permittee necessary to demonstrate that Permittee has paid all Per Trip Fees required under Section 2 of this
Permit. The intent and purpose of the provisions of this Section are such that Permittee shall keep and
maintain records which will enable the Authority to audit, if so desired, the information that Permittee
provides in the Monthly Reports required under Section 2 of this Permit detailing the number of Trips
conducted by TNC Drivers on Airport property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the records
provided by Permittee to the Authority for inspection pursuant to this Section are incomplete, incorrect, or
otherwise insufficient to allow the Authority to properly audit the information contained in the Monthly
Reports, the Authority shall have the right to inspect such records on a more frequent basis. Additional TNC
recordkeeping and reporting requirements are set forth in Section 26 of these Terms and Conditions.

0. Permittee agrees to resolve failures of the TNC Vehicle tracking mechanism enabled by its
Airport Geo-Fence in a prompt and efficient manner. Failure to resolve such TNC Vehicle tracking failures
within Permittee’s control, related to the Airport Geo-Fence within five (5) days may result in a suspension or
termination of this Permit.

P. In accordance with Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.48(H), the Permittee shall provide to each
TNC Driver operating under this Permit a credential, which shall be digitally displayed as part of the TNC
Application, that includes the following information: (i) the name or logo of the Permittee; (ii) the name and a
photograph of the TNC Driver; (iii) the make, model and license plate number of each TNC Vehicle
associated with the TNC Driver and the state issuing such license plate. The TNC Driver shall carry the
credential at all times during the operation of the TNC Vehicle and shall present the credential upon request to

13



the Authority or Authority-Related Personnel. All such requests shall be in compliance with the non-
discriminatory obligations of each party under this Agreement.

Q. Any violation of paragraphs (A)-(P) of this Section that is the result of a TNC Driver’s
conduct shall be addressed in accordance with Section 27 of these Terms and Conditions.

SECTION 3. RIGHTS OF SELECTED PERMITTEE.

A. The Permittee shall provide TNC Services only in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Permit, and will not conduct any other type of business whatsoever on the Airport unless otherwise
approved in writing by the Authority.

B. Permittee shall not allow any TNC Driver to solicit business or engage in any manner of
solicitation of business, except as permitted under this Permit or as may be expressly permitted in writing by
the Authority.

SECTION 4. INGRESS AND EGRESS.

A. The Permittee and TNC Drivers operating under this Permit shall have the right of ingress
and egress between the Airport and the city streets or public ways used in common with others having similar

rights.

B. The Authority may temporarily or permanently close any such roadway, and any other area
at the Airport presently or hereafter used as such, so long as an equivalent means of ingress and egress
remains available to the Permittee; provided, however, that this sentence shall not be construed to confer any
greater right for Permittee to use any roadway than that accorded to the general public. The Permittee hereby
releases and discharges the Authority, its successors and assigns of and from any and all claims, demands or
causes of action arising or alleged to arise out of the closing of any street, roadway, or other area, whether on

or off the Airport.

C. The Authority may interrupt or suspend Permittee’s activities at the Airport and Permittee’s
use of the Airport if, in Authority’s sole reasonable discretion, such interruption or termination is necessary in
the interest of public safety. Permittee hereby waives any claim against Authority for damages or
compensation should its activities be interrupted or suspended for any period in the interest of public safety.

D. The Permittee acknowledges and agrees that the Authority undertakes no obligation to
provide snow or ice removal or to prevent flooding in any of the Designated Areas.

SECTION 5. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS.

A. General. Permittee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances,
governmental rules, regulations and orders applicable to the operation of the Airport or to the Permittee’s
operation at the Airport. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Permittee shall comply with the
laws and regulations specified herein.

B. Federal Immigration Law. At all times during the term of this Permit, the Permittee shall not
knowingly employ any unauthorized alien, or knowingly permit with a subcontractor who knowingly employs
or contracts with an unauthorized alien to perform work under the Permit. For purposes of this Section, an
“unauthorized alien” shall mean any alien who is neither lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the
United States nor authorized to be employed by either (i) Title 8, Section 1324a of the United States Code or
(ii) the U.S. Attorney General. If the Permittee violates this provision of this Permit, the Authority may
terminate the Permit, and the Permittee shall be liable for any actual and consequential damages to the

14



Authority, including attorneys’ fees and court costs, if any.

C. Non-Discrimination. Each party covenants and agrees that it, along with its contractors,
subcontractors, representatives, successors in interest and assigns, will not: (i) discriminate against any person
on the grounds of race, color, sex, creed or national origin, and will not exclude any person from the use or
the benefits of the Airport or the TNC Services based on race, color, sex, creed or national origin; (ii) no
person, on the grounds of race, color, sex, creed or national origin, shall be excluded from participation in,
denied the benefit of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the furnishing of TNC Services on the
Airport or in any Airport Authority request for TNC Driver credentials, vehicle inspection or audit; (iii)
Permittee shall comply with all applicable requirements imposed by or pursuant to Department of
Transportation (“DOT”), Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, Title 49, Subtitle A, "Nondiscrimination in
Federally-Assisted Programs" of the DOT- Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as
said regulations may be amended; and (iv) Permittee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the
Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, with regard to its operations at the Airport.

D. Disability. Permittee shall not discriminate on the basis of handicap in providing TNC
Services hereunder, or in the treatment of persons as required by the DOT Code of Federal Regulations, Part
27, Title 49, as may be amended, to the extent 49 C.F.R. Part 27 is applicable to Permittee.

E. Security Compliance. Permittee shall comply with and enforce, as is currently or may be
required, all provisions of Transportation Security Administration regulations, amendments and additions
thereto, pertaining to Airport security which affect its operation on the Airport. Permittee shall be responsible
to ensure that unauthorized persons do not enter any Airport operations areas which have been or may be
designated by the Authority in its Airport Security Program in compliance with federal aviation regulations.
Permittee will also ensure TNC Vehicles are not left unattended at the curbside or in any of the Designated
Areas. Violations of this Section by a TNC Driver shall be addressed in accordance with Section 27 of these

Terms and Conditions.

F. OSHA Standards. Permittee and TNC Drivers shall comply with all applicable rules and
regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA™).

G. Virginia Code Provisions Regulating Transportation Network Companies. Permittee shall at
all times comply with all of the provisions of Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.45, et seq., as the same may be
amended from time to time.

SECTION 6. RULES AND REGULATIONS OF AUTHORITY.

A. The Permittee covenants and agrees to compel TNC Drivers operating under this Permit, and
Permittee’s officers, employees, guests, invitees, and those doing business with it, to observe and obey all
applicable laws as well as the Rules and Regulations of the Authority now in effect or hereinafter
promulgated governing the conduct and operation of the Airport; provided that Permittee’s obligations with
respect to violations by TNC Drivers are governed exclusively by Section 27 of these Terms and Conditions.
The Authority agrees that, except in cases of emergency, it will give notice to the Permittee of all such new or
amended Rules or Regulations adopted by it at least ten (10) days before the Permittee shall be required to
comply therewith. Copies of the Rules and Regulations are available at the offices of the Authority.

SECTION 7. FEDERAL AIRPORT AID.

Al The Authority has applied for and received, and may in the future apply for and receive,
grants of money for the benefit of the Airport from the Administrator of the Federal Aviation Administration
(“FAA”) pursuant to applicable federal law, and from the Department of Aviation of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. In connection therewith, the Authority has undertaken or may undertake certain obligations
respecting its operation of the Airport and the activities of its lessees, permittees and contractors thereon. The

15



Permittee covenants and agrees that, if the Administrator of the FAA or any other governmental entity having
jurisdiction over the enforcement of the obligations of the Authority resulting from such grant or grants shall
make any orders, recommendations or suggestions to the Authority or the Permittee respecting the
performance of the Permittee, the Permittee will promptly comply therewith.

SECTION 8. INSPECTION OF VEHICLES.

A. Each TNC Vehicle shall have a valid state inspection decal in accordance with the Code of
Virginia, and the Authority shall have the authority to inspect the decal to verify that a vehicle is in
compliance with Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.50 regarding requirements for TNC Vehicles.

SECTION 9. LOCAL MANAGEMENT.

A. Permittee shall continuously have in charge a competent and experienced manager who
shall be responsible for the day-to-day operation of Permittee under this Permit. The Permittee shall at all
times provide Authority in writing the name, e-mail address, mailing address and telephone number (for
emergency contact) of each manager.

B. Permittee shall ensure that TNC Vehicles authorized to operate on its TNC Application are
operated in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit and in accordance with the directions and
operating procedures issued by the Authority relative to the Designated Areas. Any violations by TNC
Drivers shall be addressed in accordance with Section 27 of these Terms and Conditions.

C. Permittee shall promptly respond to all inquiries from the Authority and Authority-Related
Personnel. Permittee expressly understands that the terms of this Permit in no way establish a precedent or
any limitation whatsoever on the discretion of the Authority to add to or subtract from or otherwise alter
Permit requirements. Permittee shall cooperate with the Authority during the course of the Permit term to
determine whether and how a renewal of this Permit, if one should be granted by the Authority in its sole
discretion, may or may not include requirements relating to additional driver information and/or tracking of

TNC Vehicles.

SECTION 10. INDEMNIFICATION: WAIVER OF CLAIMS.

A. Indemnification. The Permittee shall indemnify, defend and hold the Authority and the
Authority-Related Personnel completely harmless from any and all liabilities, losses, suits, actions, claims,
judgments, fines or demand of any character, including but not limited to, court costs and attorneys’ fees
brought because of any injuries or death to persons or damage received or sustained by a third party in
consequence of: (i) the operations by the Permittee, its successors, subcontractors, employees, or agents
related to this Permit, (ii) any negligent acts or omissions or misconduct of Permittee related to this Permit,
(iii) any claims for or amounts recovered arising out of the infringement of a third party’s intellectual property
rights by the Permittee’s trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, slogans, and other identifying
symbols and indicia of Permittee (collectively, “Marks™), but only if such Marks have been used by the
Authority in a manner approved by Permittee, (iv) any default by Permittee in the observance or performance
of any of the terms, conditions or covenants of this Permit, or (v) any other law, ordinance, order or decree
related to this Permit, unless resulting solely from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Authority.
The foregoing indemnity provisions shall in no way be deemed released, waived or modified in any respect
by reason of any insurance or surety provided by the Permittee under this Permit. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Permittee shall have no obligation under this Section for claims solely arising out of any negligent
act or omission of the Authority or its officers, commissioners, agents, and employees. The foregoing
indemnification obligation is contingent upon the Authority providing Permittee with (i) sole control over the
defense and settlement of each such claim (provided that Permittee will not settle or compromise any claim
without written consent of the Authority, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed), and (ii) reasonable cooperation, at Permittee’s sole expense, in the defense and settlement of a

claim.

16



B. Waiver of Claims. Permittee covenants and agrees that the Authority shall not at any time to
any extent whatsoever be liable, responsible, or in any way accountable for, and Permittee hereby waives and
releases any claim (including any claim for contractual or implied indemnity) against the Authority, for any
and all losses, liabilities, judgments, suits, claims, damages, costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, investigation costs, remediation costs and court costs), of any kind or nature, which (a) at any
time after the date of the Permit may be suffered or sustained by Permittee or any TNC Driver arising out of
Permittee’s operations, or (b) are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission (whether negligent, non-
negligent or otherwise) of Permittee or any TNC Driver, except to the extent caused solely by the negligence
or willful misconduct of the Authority.

C. Notice. Without limiting the foregoing indemnity and waiver, each party hereto shall give to
the other prompt and timely written notice of any liabilities, losses, suits, actions, claims, judgments, fines or
demands of any character, coming to its knowledge which in any way, directly or indirectly, contingently or
otherwise, affects or might affect either, and each shall have the right to participate in the defense of the same
to the extent of its own interest.

D. Permittee’s Assumption of Risk. Permittee covenants that it voluntarily assumes any and all
risk of loss, damage, or injury to the person or property of Permittee, its directors, officers, employees,
representatives and agents which may occur in, on, or about the Airport or in any of the Designated Areas at
any time and in any manner, except such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused solely by the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the Authority.

SECTION 11. INSURANCE.

A. Required Insurance. At all times during the operation of a TNC Vehicle on Airport property,
the Permittee shall, at a minimum, keep in force such insurance policies as required by Virginia Code § 46.2-
2099.52, as the same may be amended from time to time. The Permittee may in its discretion maintain
additional insurance coverage in amounts above that required by Virginia Code § 46.2-2099.52.

B. Form of Policies.

1. On each policy of insurance, Permittee shall name the Authority and the Airport,
and their respective commissioners, agents, and employees, as additional insured parties.

2. All policies of insurance shall provide that the insurance company shall provide at
least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Authority of cancellation or a reduction in coverage or limits.

C. Proof of Insurance. The TNC Driver shall carry at all times while operating a TNC
Vehicle proof of coverage under each in-force TNC insurance policy, which may be displayed as part of the
TNC Application, and each in-force automobile insurance policy covering the TNC Vehicle. The TNC Driver
shall present such proof of insurance upon request to the Authority, or to any person involved in an accident
that occurs while transporting a Passenger.

D. Compliance with Future Code of Virginia Amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein

to the contrary, the Permittee’s insurance shall at all times comply with any future amendments to the Code of
Virginia governing TNC insurance requirements.

SECTION 12. SIGNS.
A, Signs. Permittee shall not install, erect, affix, paint, display or place or permit the

installation, erection, affixation, painting, display or placement of any sign, lettering, or other advertising
device or media in, on, or about the Airport, the terminals, or any portion thereof (including the Designated

17



Areas), without the prior written consent of the Authority.

B. No Advertising or Promotions. No TNC Vehicle shall post or display, on the exterior
thereof, any signage or other displays except for Permittee’s name and/or logo; provided, however, that de
minimis displays (such as bumper stickers), which in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, do not contain
offensive messages, will not violate this prohibition.

SECTION 13. EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS NOT GRANTED.

A It is specifically understood and agreed that nothing herein contained shall be construed as
granting or authorizing the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308 of the Federal
Aviation Act, as amended, or any other federal criteria.

SECTION 14. SUBORDINATION OF PERMIT.

A. This Permit shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement
between the Authority and the Commonwealth of Virginia or the United States relative to the operation or
maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to
the granting of any funds for the development of the Airport. In the event that any future conditions materially
impair the Permittee’s ability to provide TNC Services in accordance with this Permit, the Permittee shall
have the option to terminate the Permit on at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Authority.

SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT OF PERMIT.

A Permittee shall not at any time sell, assign or transfer in any manner whatsoever this Permit,
nor any part thereof, for any purposes without the prior written consent of the Authority, which consent may
be withheld in the Authority’s sole discretion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Permittee may assign this
Permit in its entirety without the prior written consent of the Authority in connection with a merger,
acquisition, corporate reorganization, or sale of all or substantially all of the Permittee’s assets; provided,
however, that in the event of such assignment by Permittee, the Authority reserves the right in its sole
discretion to require the surviving entity to provide to the Authority a security deposit in the amount of Ten
Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00). No approved assignment or sublease shall in any way affect or
diminish Permittee’s obligation to perform all of the terms, covenants, conditions and provisions binding
upon Permittee and contained in this Permit. Any transfer in violation of this provision shall be void. The
Authority’s acceptance of any fees or charges from Permittee (including the Monthly Payment) pursuant to
this Permit shall not constitute a waiver of the Authority’s right to terminate this Permit. Any attempt by
Permittee to transfer this Permit in violation of this Section without the prior express written consent of the
Authority shall immediately render this Permit void.

SECTION 16. CONDEMNATION.

A In the event of the acquisition by condemnation or the exercise of the power of eminent
domain (which for these purposes shall not be deemed to include the Authority) of any interest in all or part of
the Airport, the Permittee shall not institute any action or proceeding or assert any claim against the Authority
for compensation or consideration of any nature whatsoever, and any provision herein contained contrary to
the provisions of this Section shall have no force or effect. All compensation awarded or paid upon such a
total or partial taking of Airport premises shall belong to and be the property of the Authority without any
participation by the Permittee. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude the Permittee from
recovering directly from the condemning authority the value of any claim as may exist for loss of business, or
damage to, or cost of removal of, or for the value of stock, trade fixtures, furniture and other personal property
belonging to the Permittee; provided, however, that no such claim shall diminish or otherwise adversely affect
the Authority's award or the award of the Trustee of any Airport Revenue Bonds, whether outstanding now or
in the future.

18



SECTION 17. DEFAULT.

A.  Default by Permittee. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event of

default (each, an “Event of Default™) by Permittee:

1.

B.

Permittee shall fail, duly and punctually, to pay the Monthly Payment for three
(3) consecutive payment periods (or to submit the Monthly Report), or to make any
other payment required hereunder, when due to the Authority, and such failure
shall continue beyond any applicable notice and cure period;

The Permittee fails to maintain the insurance required herein;

The Permittee fails to observe or perform any other covenant or agreement
contained in the Permit, and such failure continues for a period of five (5) calendar
days after written notice by the Authority of such failure requiring the same to be
remedied, provided that if such observance or performance requires work to be
done, actions to be taken, or conditions to be remedied, which by their nature
cannot reasonably be done, taken or remedied within such 5- day period, but can be
done, taken or remedied within a reasonable period of time, no Event of Default
shall be deemed to have occurred or to exist if the Permittee shall commence work,
action or other remedy within such 5-day period and shall diligently and
continuously prosecute the same to completion;

Any warranty, representation, certification, financial statement or other information
made or furnished by Permittee at any time is determined by the Authority, in its
sole judgment, to be false or misleading in any material respect; If Permittee, or
any successor or assignee, while in possession, shall file a petition in bankruptcy or
insolvency or for reorganization under any bankruptcy act, or shall voluntarily take
advantage of any such act by answer or otherwise, or shall make an assignment for
the benefit of creditors;

If involuntary proceedings under any bankruptcy law or insolvency act shall be
instituted against Permittee, or if a receiver or trustee shall be appointed of all or
substantially all of the property of Permittee and such proceedings shall not be
dismissed or the receivership or trusteeship vacated within thirty (30) days after the
institution or appointment;

If Permittee shall vacate or abandon the provision of TNC Services at the Airport
for a period of seven (7) consecutive days;

If this Permit or any controlling interest in Permittee shall be transferred to or shall
pass to or devolve on any other party, except in the manner permitted herein; or

If Permittee fails to maintain its Virginia TNC certification status.

Effect of Permittee’s Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by Permittee,

in addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, the Authority shall have the following rights,
options, and remedies which shall be construed and held to be cumulative, and no one of them shall be

exclusive of the other:

1.

The Authority may elect, in its sole discretion, to require Permittee to provide to
the Authority a security deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand and 00/100
Dollars ($10,000.00) in the event that Permittee fails to make timely payments

19



for three (3) payment periods in any twelve (12) month period.

2. The Authority shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to cancel and terminate
this Permit immediately by giving to Permittee written notice of the cancellation
and termination.

3. The Authority, in its sole discretion, may suspend this Permit for a period of

time deemed appropriate by the Authority, when considering the facts,
circumstances and seriousness of the Event of Default.

4. In the event the Authority revokes or suspends this Permit, Permittee shall
promptly effect this prohibition through its TNC Application by removing the
Airport property as a location available for pick-ups. Permittee shall also inform
TNC Drivers operating under this Permit of the prohibition and advise the TNC
Drivers in writing not to drop-off or pick-up any Passengers at the Airport. A
copy of such written notification shall be provided to the Authority.

5. The rights of termination or suspension described above shall be in addition to
any rights and remedies that the Authority shall have pursuant to this Permit or
at law or in equity, and the exercise by the Authority of any right of termination
or suspension shall be without prejudice to any other such rights or remedies.

C. Default by Authority. The Permittee’s sole remedy against the Authority, in the event
that the Authority fails to comply with the provisions of this Permit and such failure is not cured within thirty
(30) days of the Authority’s receipt of written notice from the Permittee specifying such failure, shall be the
right to terminate this Permit upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Authority. In the
event of such termination, the Permittee will be responsible for all Monthly Payments due the Authority
up to and including the date of termination.

D. Other Termination. If, for any reason, all scheduled certificate airline service at the Airport
is permanently suspended, whether such suspension be due to act of God, the public enemy or other
circumstances, and such suspension lasts for fourteen (14) consecutive days, Permittee shall have the right to
terminate the Permit upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Authority.

SECTION 18. INSTRUCTION.

A. Prior to engaging in operations under this Permit, Permittee shall provide each TNC Driver
written instructions about the rules for Airport operations, including but not limited to, the location of the
Designated Areas, any Rules and Regulations of the Authority governing TNC operations, and any other
Airport-specific rules that the Authority requires to be conveyed to Permittee’s TNC Drivers. Permittee shall
make its TNC Driver instructions available to the Authority upon request. Permittee agrees to modify or
supplement its TNC Driver instructions as necessary to ensure compliance with the Permit and the Rules and

Regulations of the Authority.

SECTION 19. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PERMITTEE.

The Permittee represents and warrants to the Authority that:

A. It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction, incorporation or
establishment;
B. It has the power and the authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Permit

and to pay the Fees in accordance herewith;

20



C. This Permit has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by it, and, assuming the due
authorization, execution and delivery hereof by the other parties hereto, constitutes a legal, valid and binding
obligation of Permittee, enforceable against it in accordance with the terms hereof, subject to applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws affecting creditor’s rights generally, and subject, as to enforceability,
to general principles of equity regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law;

D. Permittee’s execution and delivery of this Permit and the performance of its obligations
hereunder do not and will not constitute or result in a default under, a breach or violation of, or the creation of
any lien or encumbrance, on any of its property under its charter or bylaws (or equivalent organizational
documents), or any other agreement, instrument, law, ordinance, regulation, judgment, injunction or order
applicable to it or any of its property;

E. All consents, authorizations and approvals requisite for its execution, delivery and
performance of this Permit have been obtained and remain in full force and effect and all conditions thereof
have been duly complied with, and no other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any governmental
authority or regulatory body is required for such execution, delivery or performance; and

F. There is no proceeding pending or threatened against Permittees at law or in equity, or
before any governmental instrumentality or in any arbitration, which would materially impair its ability to
perform its obligations under this Permit, and there is no such proceeding pending against it which purports or
is likely to affect the legality, validity or enforceability of this Permit.

SECTION 20. FORCE MAJEURE.

A. Neither party hereto shall be liable to the other for any failure, delay or interruption in the
performance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Permit due to causes beyond the control of
that party, including but not limited to, strikes, boycotts, labor disputes, shortages of materials, acts of God,
acts of the public enemy, acts of superior governmental authority, weather conditions, floods riots, rebellion,
sabotage or other circumstances for which such party is not responsible or which are not in its power to
control.

SECTION 21. PERMITTEE'S DEALINGS WITH THE AUTHORITY.

A. Whenever in this Permit the Permittee is required or permitted to obtain the approval of,
consult with, give notice to or otherwise deal with the Authority, the Permittee shall deal with the Authority’s
authorized representative, and, unless or until the Authority shall give Permittee written notice to the contrary,
the Authority’s authorized representative shall be its Executive Director.

SECTION 22. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

A. It is understood and agreed that nothing herein is intended or should be construed as in any
way creating or establishing the relationship of co-partners between the parties hereto or of creating a joint
venture, or as establishing Permittee as the agent, representative, or employee of the Authority for any
purpose or in any manner whatsoever.

B. Permittee is to be, and shall remain, at all times, an independent contractor with respect to
all services (including the TNC Services) performed under this Permit.

SECTION 23. NO WAIVERS.

A. Every provision herein imposing an obligation upon the Permittee is a material inducement
and consideration for the execution of this Permit. No waiver by the Authority of any of the terms, covenants

21



or conditions of this Permit, or noncompliance therewith, shall be deemed as a waiver at any time thereafier
of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained, nor of the strict and prompt
performance thereof. No delay, failure or omission of the Authority to exercise any right, power, privilege or
option arising from any default shall impair any such right, power, privilege or option, nor be construed as a
waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein. No notice by the Authority shall be required to restore or
revive time as being of the essence hereof after waiver by the Authority of default in one or more instances.

SECTION 24. PERMIT DISPUTES.

A. Dispute Resolution.

1. Permittee and any TNC Driver penalized under Section 27 must submit all claims
relating to the authorization to operate at the Airport, in writing, to the Executive
Director of the Authority within ten (10) days of the discovery of the occurrence
allegedly giving rise to such claim. Any claim not timely submitted to the Executive
Director is deemed to be waived.

2. The Executive Director shall respond to such written claim within fifteen (15) days of
the receipt of the claim by either: (i) making a written decision with respect to the
claim, or (ii) making a written request for additional information. If additional
information requested, Permittee shall provide all requested additional information
within seven (7) days of the date of the Executive Director’s request, or the claim is
waived. Thereafter, the Executive Director shall make a written determination with
respect to the claim within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the additional
information. In either case, the Executive Director’s written determination shall be
final unless within thirty (30) days from the date of the Executive Director’s written
determination, Permittee or TNC Driver requests, in writing, an appeal to the
Authority’s Board (the “Board”), stating specifically all grounds of appeal. No
written decision denying a claim or addressing issues related to a claim shall be
considered a denial unless the written decision is signed by the Authority’s Executive
Director.

3. The Board and Permittee shall select a mutually agreeable date for a hearing of the
appeal, which shall be ninety (90) days after the Board’s receipt of the written appeal
unless otherwise agreed by the Board and Permittee. At such hearing, Permittee or
TNC Driver shall be afforded such opportunity to be heard and to offer relevant
evidence in support of its appeal. Relevance shall be determined by the Board in its
sole discretion. The Board’s decision of the appeal shall be final.

4. Permittee shall diligently continue performance of this Permit, including as may be
directed by the Executive Director or the Board, regardless of whether such dispute is
pending or on appeal, and regardless of the outcome of such dispute or appeal.

B. Exclusive Jurisdiction and Venue: Service of Process. Permittee agrees that all actions or
proceedings arising out of this Permit shall be litigated exclusively in the Circuit Court of the County of
Albemarle, Virginia, and Permittee hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the aforesaid
court. Permittee consents and agrees that service of process upon Permittee in any court action or proceeding
shall be made by certified mail, return receipt requested, directed to the Permittee at the address given by
Permittee on Page 8 of this Permit, and service so made shall be deemed completed two (2) days after the
same shall have been mailed as aforesaid.

SECTION 25. VIRGINIA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT.

A. Permittee recognizes that books and records regarding its operations under this Permit may

22



be subject to disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, Virginia Code § 2.2-3700, et seq.
(“FOIA”). The Authority will disclose such records in accordance with FOIA and the Code of Virginia
provisions regulating TNCs. The Authority understands that Permittee may contend that certain information
that Permittee submits to the Authority, including but not limited to the TNC Driver identification information
and the TNC Vehicle license plate information (collectively, “Confidential Information™) is a trade secret not
subject to this disclosure. If Permittee seeks to protect trade secrets or proprietary information, then it shall be
the sole responsibility of Permittee to identify such information following the procedure referenced in
Virginia Code §2.2-4342(F). Permittee’s failure to undertake steps necessary for the protection of
Confidential Information shall be at its sole risk. If the Authority receives a third party request for the
Permittee’s Confidential Information under the FOIA, the Authority will promptly notify Permittee of such
request so that Permittee may seek court intervention concerning the potential disclosure of such Confidential
Information. The Authority will comply with the applicable legal disclosure requirements that are required by
applicable law and/or court order.

B. Permittee expressly waives all causes of action for damages and recourse whatsoever against
the Authority and its Board, officers, officials, directors, employees, and agents for the Authority’s disclosure
of records or other materials, including but not limited to, Confidential Information submitted by Permittee to
the Authority, when the Permittee has been provided with notice and the opportunity to intervene as set forth

above herein.

SECTION 26. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.

A. Permittee shall comply with the recordkeeping and reporting requirements set forth in
Virginia Code §§ 46.2-2099.48()-(J) and 46.2-2099.53 and the Authority shall have all rights conferred under

those sections.

SECTION 27. VIOLATIONS BY TNC DRIVERS.

A. Permittee and TNC Drivers must abide by all policies and rules contained herein, including
without limitation, all of the terms and conditions of this Permit and the Rules and Regulations of the
Authority. Permittee shall be notified of TNC Drivers affiliated with Permittee who have been warned but
continue to violate this Permit, or the Authority’s Rules and Regulations, including but not limited to, parking
or traffic violations. Permittee agrees to block any such TNC Driver from accepting trip requests through the
TNC Application from a Passenger seeking a pick-up at the Airport for a period of up to six months from the
date of the third infraction that occurs during the term of this Permit. Each additional infraction will result in
another suspension of up to six months or permanent loss of airport privileges at the discretion of the
Authority. The Authority reserves the right to immediately suspend the operating privileges of any TNC
Driver accused of committing any crime, whether felony or misdemeanor, while on Airport property, while
transporting a Passenger for drop-off at the Airport or while transporting a Passenger after pick-up at the
Airport, and, upon reasonable notice, Permittee agrees to immediately block any suspended TNC Driver from
accepting trip requests through the TNC Application from a Passenger secking a pick-up at the Airport. TNC
Drivers found operating during any suspension period will be subject to legal action. A TNC Driver may
dispute any allegation or proposed penalty under this Section in accordance with Section 24 of these Terms
and Conditions.

SECTION 28. MISCELLANEOUS.

A. Entire Agreement. This Permit constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous written
or oral agreements or understandings.

B. No-Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries to this Permit.

C. Survival of Indemnities. The expiration or earlier termination of this Permit shall not affect

23




the right of either party to enforce any and all indemnities and representations and warranties given or made
to the other party under this Permit, nor shall it affect any provision of this Permit that expressly states it shall
survive termination hereof. Each party hereto specifically acknowledges and agrees that, with respect to each
of the indemnities contained in this Permit, the indemnitor has an immediate and independent obligation to
defend the indemnitees from any claim which actually or potentially falls within the indemnity provision,
even if such allegation is or may be groundless, fraudulent or false, which obligation arises at the time such
claim is tendered to the indemnitor by the indemnitee.

D. Limitation on Damages. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in no event will
the Authority be liable to Permittee or any TNC Driver for any consequential, incidental, or special damages,
or lost revenues or lost profits.

E. Counterparts. This Permit may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

24



EXHIBIT B

OVERVIEW OF CHO AIRPORT

Earlysville

EXHIBIT B
Overview of the
Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
(CHO)}

“ ' > wr 5= 4 ‘;;_L
/.
S

EXHIBIT B - Continued

DESIGNATED “TNC HOLD AREA”, “TNC
STAND AREA?”, and DROP-OFF AREA

EXHIBIT B:
CHOD' TNC Designated Areas

CHO's
CHO's Drop-Otf Area
TNC Stand At Int Front of Terminat Curb
South End of Terminal Side Near the -
Curb Side DeparturefAirline
Ticketing Entrance

CHO'
fNC Hold Area

Gobgle Barth ; Z - i
B i / i o




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-3
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATION TO ADMINISTER THE
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK AGREEMENTS WITH UBER AND LYFT

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority (Authority) amended its Rules and
Regulations on December 12, 2018 to allow for the operations of Transportation Network Companies on

Authority properties;

WHEREAS, staff has worked with legal counsel to develop a Transportation Network Company
Agreement (TNC Agreement), and that TNC Agreement has been negotiated with two major TNCs, Uber
and Lyft; and

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing Board of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority that
the Executive Director is hereby designated as the Board’s agent for administration of said TNC Agreement,
including, without limitation: making immaterial changes to the agreement; executing the agreements on
behalf of the Authority; giving of notices and approvals required of the Authority, and exercising and
enforcing such other rights as may be authorized or reserved to the Authority within the TNC Agreement.

ADOPTED this 30™ day of January 2020.
Vote:
Aye: No:

Certified:
By:

Melinda Crawford, Secretary



January 2020

-—-7

CHO

A I R P O R T

1. Executive Director’s Update for the following items will be provided:
Personnel Update
Construction Update

a.
b.

B e A

1.
il.

iil.
iv.

V.
Vi.

Air Carrier Apron Expansion Project

Expansion of Economy Surface Parking Lot Project & Hangar Parking Lot
Improvements

ARFF Breakroom and Training Room Project — Environmental issue
MALSR Update

Passenger Shelters

Terminal Area Masterplan

Personnel Policy Revision

Upcoming Request for Proposals — Taxi, Engineering, Banking
Authority Smoking Policy

Marketing & Air Service Update

Staff’s Snow Removal Efforts

Part 139 FAA Annual Certification Inspection



